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MESSAGE FROM IGOR
SECHIN, CEO AND CHAIRMAN
OF THE MANAGEMENT BOARD

Igor Sechin

Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Management Board

Dear shareholders,

In 2024, Rosneft reaffirmed its pivotal role
in the Russian economy, demonstrating
strong resilience and operational
efficiency despite global instability.

Rosneft is a major contributor

to the Russian Federation’s budget
revenues. In 2024, the Company remained
the country's largest taxpayer. Total

taxes and other mandatory payments

to the Russian budget (excluding refunds
of excise duty on crude oil) reached

RUB 6.11trin. This represents an all-time
high not only for the Company, but also
for the Russian market overalll.

In 2024, Rosneft's revenue and EBITDA

hit new highs. The Company's unit
production costs remain among the most
competitive in the global energy industry
in line with the strategic goal of under
USD 3 per barrel.

Another key strength of Rosneft

is its financial stability, with

the Company's free cash flow staying
positive for 18 consecutive quarters

as aresult of effective management and
a robust business model. On top of that,

the Company significantly reduced
its debt, winning praise from the leading
rating agencies.

Strong financial results allow Rosneft

to consistently pay dividends

to its shareholders — a practice
maintained for over a quarter of a century
since 1999. The Company's dividend
policy makes payouts transparent and
predictable, with at least 50% of IFRS
profit distributed as dividends.

In 2024, Rosneft's shareholders received

a total of RUB 633.4 bIn in interim
dividends and dividends for the previous
year. In the reporting period,

the Company also approved interim
dividends for 2024, which were duly paid
out in early 2025. The results of the second
half of the year provide grounds to expect
that the Company will fully meet

its obligations to the shareholders and
pay out full-year dividends for 2024.

Such consistency is highly valued

by market players, with the number

of Rosneft's shareholders rising by one
third over the past year alone to reach
1.5 million. This is a clear sign of investors'
trust in the Company as one of the most
reliable assets in the Russian financial
market.

Despite Russia's commitments under
the OPEC+ agreement, Rosneft
maintains its status as a global leader
in hydrocarbon production as a result
of strong production efficiency and
introduction of proprietary technologies
and solutions.
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Notably enough, the Company leads

the charge in delivering large-scale
investment projects that are of strategic
importance to the Russian economy.

In 2024, capex hit an all-time high

of RUB 1.4 trin, reflecting the Company's
unwavering commitment to strengthening
Russia’'s energy sovereignty.

Rosneft's high exploration efficiency

is confirmed by strong results: in 2024,

we discovered seven new fields and

97 hydrocarbon deposits, with our
reserves under the Russian classification
system reaching 21.5 btoe and the reserve
replacement ratio exceeding 100%.

These metrics clearly confirm Rosneft's
leadership in efficient development

of resources.

Securing uninterrupted fuel supplies

to the domestic market remains

a constant priority for the Company.

As the largest oil refiner in the country,
Rosneft continuously develops

its technologies. Complete transition

to in-house catalysts for producing high-
quality motor fuels is a source of particular
pride, as it presents a vivid example

of successful import substitution.

Much of this progress is owed

to the Company's ambitious R&D
developments. In 2024, the number
of Rosneft's registered patents
exceeded 1,100.

Technologies and innovations

play animportant role in delivering

on the Company's environmentall
initiatives, as they help preserve

the environment and provide R&D support
for nationwide nature conservation

www.rosneft.com
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and restoration efforts. In 2024, Rosneft
invested RUB 74 bln in several major green
projects, including upgrades to pipeline
safety, development of infrastructure

for APG utilisation, and reduction

of emissions.

The Company traditionally places
strong emphasis on reforestation and
biodiversity conservation efforts. In 2024,
Rosneft planted nearly 11 million tree
seedlings in its regions of operation,
setting a new record and bringing

the total to 37 million seedlings over

the past four years. Additionally, around
24 million fingerlings of valuable fish
species were released into rivers and
lakes across Russia. In the reporting year,
Rosneft launched Tamura, a unique
biodiversity conservation programme
designed to collect data on key Arctic
animal species. Research of polar bear,
wild reindeer and rare bird populations
will help develop effective biodiversity
conservation initiatives for this
strategically important region.

Rosneft makes a significant contribution
to the development of social
infrastructure across its regions

of operation. In 2024, the Company
continued projects focusing

on the construction and modernisation
of healthcare and educational
institutions, and sports, energy and utility
facilities.

Supporting amateur sports is another
pillar of Rosneft's social policy. The Energy
of Life corporate sports and fitness
movement is an important element

of these efforts, as it encourages
employees to practise sports on aregular

Corporate Governance Appendices

basis and participate in various sports
competitions. The movement has seen
steady growth year over year, with almost
128,000 employees participating in 2024.

Rosneft also actively contributes to major
cultural projects that seek to revive

and preserve Russia’s national and
spiritual values. The most notable events
supported by the Company in 2024
included the opening of a permanent
exhibition on China at the Hermitage
Museum, the White Ship music festival
for children, a tour by the Sretensky
Monastery Choir, and Tatyana Navka's
ice shows.

The results of 2024 convincingly
demonstrated the effectiveness

of Rosneft's strategy. The Company
retained its leadership in the industry

and laid a solid foundation for long-term
growth. In 2025, we will continue to work
hard on all priority areas — from increasing
production efficiency and implementing
innovative technologies to delivering

on social and environmental initiatives.
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ROSNEFT-2030
STRATEGY

Adopted in 2021

Il Consistent focus on our targets

Targets and priorities Achievements in 2024
2955.9 e

Increasing production

to 330 mmtoe

Share of gas o
in total production (average > 2 5 /o
for 2022-2030)' Share of gas in 2022-2024

=225%

Higher dividends
and returns 3 O%

EBITDA growth, or + RUB 699 bin vs 2021

usD 2 .9 per boe

unit production costs

Retaining leadership in unit
production costs

Upgrading filling station

network > 20 0 filling stations upgraded

Eliminating 9 o
legacy contaminated lands - /o

vs 20232
Developing Launch of the Company's Unified Digital
efficient in-house technologies' Platform (UDP): import substitution and reduced

localising critical production IT project costs

solutions and services

T 2022-2030 average, based on gross production.
2 The total area of legacy contaminated lands (polluted as a result of past activities), as at the end of the reporting
period, measured in hectares.
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DEVELOPMENT
PROGRAMME AND
PROGRESS REPORT

Originally developed in 20142, the
Long-Term Development Programme
(the Programme) is subject to annual
updates.

In 2024, we revised the Programme,
taking into account the Company’s
performance, action plans

to achieve certain strategic goals,
and updated initiatives drafted
pursuant to the Russian Government's
directives”.

The Programme details the
Company's strategic focus areas,
targets and goals for all business
areas and corporate functions. It
also includes a list of key initiatives
to achieve the Company's strategic
goals.

3 The Programme was developed
in accordance with Instruction
of the President of the Russian Federation
Vladimir Putin No. Pr-3086 dated
27 December 2013; approved by Rosneft's
Board of Directors on 9 December 2014
(Minutes No. 12).

4 Directives of the Government
of the Russian Federation No. 7558p-
P13 dated 12 November 2014, No. 1472p-
P13 dated 3 April 2016, No. 4531p-P13
dated 28 June 2016, No. 8860p-P13 dated
29 November 2018, No. 6739p-P13 dated
30 July 2020, and No. 3502p-P13 dated
15 April 2021.

www.rosneft.com

We completed the Programme's

key initiatives planned for core
businesses and functional units

for 2024. For the Programme's key
outcomes in 2024, see the Operating
and Financial Results section.

TSATR — Audit Services LLC, an
independent auditor, completed its
engagement and provided assurance
about Rosneft's Programme

Progress Report and achievement

of the key performance indicators in
2024. The opinion was received on

30 April 2025.

Corporate Governance

Appendices
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KPI
STRUCTURE

The Company'’s KPI system seeks to decompose the Company's Strategy and
its Long-Term Development Programme into specific KPIs, cascade them to all

management levels, evaluate progress against targets, and create incentives for

efficient management decision-making. A strong motivation tool for employees,
KPIs ensure a step-by-step achievement of the Company's strategic goals.

I I Assessment of progress against KPlIs

Strategy v
Long-Term Development Programme v
Consolidated business plan v

» Corporate KPIs
» Individual KPIs of the Chief Executive Officer
» Bonus disqualification (blocking) indicators

Business plans of the Company'’s units v
» Individual KPIs of the Company's top managers responsible for the performance

of businesses
» Bonus disqualification (blocking) indicators set for heads and employees of business units

Business plans of Group Subsidiaries v
» Collective KPIs of Group Subsidiaries

» Individual KPIs of Group Subsidiaries’ senior management
» Bonus disqualification (blocking) indicators for Group Subsidiaries

Assessment of progress against KPIs

8 Annual Report 2024
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The KPI system ensures:

Corporate Governance Appendices

Well-balanced and
integrated indicators
motivating employees
to achieve the
Company's main goals

ofll

Transparency,
measurability,
minimum sufficiency,
and consistency

of KPIs

The KPI system focuses on:

Delivering on the
Company's Strategy
and Long-Term
Development
Programme

With both financial (economic) and

operating (industry-specific) KPls

in place, the system breaks down

relevant indicators into the following

groups:

» Corporate KPIs based on the key
financial, economic, operating
and industry-specific indicators
from the Company'’s consolidated
business plan

» Individual KPIs based on individual
strategic goals for each top
executive

www.rosneft.com

Consistently improving
the Company'’s financial
and operating (industry-
specific) results

Lot

Aside from that, for the purpose
of motivating the Company's
employees, we introduced
bonus disqualification (blocking)
indicators. A failure to achieve
targets under these indicators
reduces the employee'’s

overall annual bonus amount

in the reporting period. KPIs

and targets for the senior
management are set by Rosneft's
Board of Directors on an annual

A top-down approach
to cascading and
breaking down KPIs

7/

Ensuring compliance
with directives

of the Russian
Government

basis subject to preliminary
discussion by the relevant
committee.
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Assessment of progress against KPlIs

To calculate annual bonuses for managers and employees,

the Company analyses progress against KPIs following
the review of the annual performance based on the management
accounts and audited public financial statements.

Once the reporting period

is completed, the Company's

Internal Audit Service annually
assesses the performance against
corporate and individual KPIs set

for calculating annual bonuses

for the management of the Company
and Group Subsidiaries. The audit
findings serve as the basis

to determine the bonuses payable

to the management of the Company
and Group Subsidiaries to be approved

by governing bodies of Rosneft (Board
of Directors, Management Board, etc.).
Target KPIs are normalised to reflect
factors beyond the management'’s
control, such as FX volatility and
global market prices in accordance
with the Regulations on the KPI
Normalisation Procedure Related

to Management Performance Review
and Assessment in the Reporting Period
to Calculate Annual Bonuses and

the Guidelines for KPI Normalisation
Related to Performance Review against
Business Plan’.

T The Regulations were approved by a resolution of the Board of Directors on 2 September 2024, and came into effect on 10 September 2024.
The guidelines were approved by Order of Rosneft No. 147 dated 1 April 2023 and enacted on 1 April 2023.
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INVESTMENT PROGRAMME

Rosneft's 2024 investment programme was approved as part

of the 2024-2028 Business Plan at the Board of Directors meeting
on 27 December 2023 (Minutes No. 10 dated 28 December 2023).

In 2024, Rosneft continued

the implementation of a large-
scale investment programme with
capex of RUB 1,442 bin, ensuring
the fulfilment of the Company's
key strategic goals and targets.
Investments were directed
towards new major projects,
development of oil and gas assets,
as well as implementation of highly
efficient initiatives, the refinery
maintenance programme, and retail
network expansion.

> RUB 1 4 trin

2024 capex

www.rosneft.com

We ranked our investment
projects by ROI (taking into
account risk assessments) and
strategic importance. Portfolio
management tools allow timely
response to external and internal
developments and, if necessary,
quick optimisation or reallocation
of investments between different
business segments.

Capex, RUB bin

2024 1,442
2023 1,297
2022 1,132

il
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Investment process

Our investment activities help us
ensure commitment to the following
strategic priorities:

>

Sustainable business growth driven
by investments in competitive

and high value-added projects
based on an ongoing portfolio
optimisation

Increasing efficiency across

all business streams through

an in-depth analysis of investment
needs, efficient decision-making

and project implementation,
monitoring and control throughout
the project life cycle

Strengthening investment
discipline by ensuring better
project identification, classification,
thorough project analysis and
efficient decision-making process
reliant on delegation of authority

Delegating: investment
I I decision-making hierarchy

» Honouring social responsibility
principles regarding occupational
safety and environmental
protection

» Focus on the UN Sustainable
Development Goals to help achieve
progress in addressing globall
economic, social and environmental
challenges, including those related
to carbon management

Board of Directors

Management Board

Investment Committee

Segment Subcommittees

Exploration and Productioy Functional/ Refining, Commerce and Logistics

Rosneft's investment governance process is integrated with alll
related processes, including strategic and business planning,

budgeting, reporting and financial control, project management

and corporate governance.

12
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OPERATING AND FINANCIAL

RESULTS

Exploration and production

In 2024, the Company's hydrocarbon
production amounted to 255.9 mmtoe
(5.2 mmtoe per day). Production

of liquid hydrocarbons in 2024

totalled 184.0 mmt (3.7 mmb per

day). The performance was primarily
influenced by oil production restrictions
implemented in accordance with
Russian Government decisions.

Rosneft's natural gas production

came in at 87.5 bem (1.5 mmboe

per day), allowing the Company

to maintain its position as Russia's
largest independent gas producer

by the end of 2024. New projects
commissioned in 2022 in the Yamal-
Nenets Autonomous Area now account
for more than a third of the Company's
total gas production.

Production drilling in 2024 exceeded
12 min m, with the commissioning

of more than 3 thousand new wells,
72% of which were horizontal.

In 2024, Rosneft conducted over
1.2 thousand linear km of 2D seismic
and 5.3 thousand sq. km of 3D seismic

87.5...

Company'’s natural gas output
in 2024

www.rosneft.com

onshore in Russia. 62 exploration
wells were completed and tested,
achieving a success rate of 89%.

Following an audit under the PRMS
(Petroleum Resources Management
System) standards, the Company's 2P
hydrocarbon reserves stood at 11.4 btoe.
The 2P reserve replacement ratio
exceeds 100%.

Our robust exploration activities

in 2024 helped discover seven fields

and 97 deposits with a total of 0.2 btoe

in AB1C1+B2C2 reserves. Under the Russian
classification system (AB1C1+B2C2),
Rosneft's hydrocarbon reserves totalled
21.5 btoe as at 31 December 2024.

255.9 o

(5.2 mmboe per day)
Company's hydrocarbon production
in 2024

Il A

Our robust exploration
activities in 2024 helped
discover seven fields
and 97 deposits with

a total of 0.2 btoe

in AB1C1+B2C2 reserves.
Under the Russian
classification system,
Rosneft's hydrocarbon
reserves totalled

21.5 btoe (AB1C1+B2C2)
as at 31 December 2024.

13
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Vostok Oil project

In 2024, the Company completed 0.7 thousand

linear km of 2D seismics and 0.6 thousand sqg km

of 3D seismics as part of the Vostok Oil Project. Four
wells were successfully completed and tested, one well
is being drilled, and testing is being conducted on three
more wells.

In the reporting year, the project perimeter expanded
from 52 to 60 licence areas, while the resource base
according to the Russian classification increased

to 7.0 bt of oil.

The Company continues pilot development

of the Payakha, Ichemminskoye and Baikalovskoye
fields. In 2024, the Company drilled 92,000 m and
completed the drilling of 11 production wells. Based
on the results of successful drilling and well testing
at the Payakha field, transportation of produced oil
to the nearest Suzunskoye field has been organised.

14

The construction of the Vankor — Payakha — Sever

Bay trunk oil pipeline is underway, with more than
78,000 piles mounted and 359 km of pipes laid

at design elevations, including a 119 km double-pipe
section. This includes the laying and pneumatic testing
of the main line of the oil pipeline crossing the Yenisei
River, with work continuing on laying the backup line.

Most of the construction work for two cargo berths
and a berth for the port fleet at the Sever Bay Port
terminal has been completed. Construction of the first
oil loading berth continues, and preparatory work

for the construction of the second one is underway.
Construction of a metering station point and the Suzun
oil pumping station is in progress. Construction

of logistics infrastructure, hydraulic structures, shore
reinforcement, and expansion of coastal and berthing
infrastructure remain underway.

Annual Report 2024
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Refining and commerce

In 2024, refining throughput

of crude oil in Russia reached

82.6 mmt. The Company conducted
work to maintain high reliability

of refining assets while successfully
implementing a transition

to domestic technologies. Notably,
Rosneft now ensures the operation
of technological units at its refineries
with its own proprietary catalysts,
which are essential for producing
high-quality motor fuels. Throughout
2024, the Company produced more
than 2 thousand tonnes of diesel
and gasoline fraction hydrotreating
catalysts, as well as and guard

bed catalysts. Rosneft facilities

also manufactured 138 tonnes

of gasoline reforming catalysts and
390 tonnes of catalysts for hydrogen,
petrochemicals, and adsorbent
production. A total of 1.6 thousand
tonnes of coked diesel hydrotreating
catalysts were regenerated.

'_.E|

et
—

www.rosneft.com

Sustainable supply of high-quality
motor fuel to Russian consumers
is one of Rosneft's key priorities.

In 2024, the Company's domestic
sales of petroleum products

totalled 43.6 mmt, including 13.1 mmt
of gasoline and 18.1 mmt of diesel fuel.

The Company is an active participant
in trading at the St Petersburg
International Mercantile Exchange
(SPIMEX). In 2024, we sold 10.1 mmt

of gasoline and diesel fuel

on the exchange, which is twice

the regulatory requirement.

N
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In 2024,

the Company'’s
domestic sales

of petroleum products
totalled 43.6 mmt.

15
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Financial results

The Company's core financial
performance was shaped

by operating results, the prevailing
macroeconomic climate, and key
management decisions.

The Company'’s revenue for 2024

was RUB 10,139 bIn, marking a 10.7%
increase year-on-year, primarily driven
by strengthening Urals oil prices.

The Company delivered an EBITDA
of RUB 3,029 bln and an EBITDA margin
of 29.7%.

Unit lifting costs amounted
to USD 2.9 per boe.

Net income attributable to Rosneft
shareholders stood at RUB 1,084 bln,
reflecting a 14.4% year-on-year
decrease. This decline stemmed mainly
from elevated borrowing rates and

non-cash factors, including currency
revaluation of foreign liabilities and
effect of change in the income tax rate.

Capex in 2024 reached RUB 1,442 bin,
an 11.2% increase year-on-year,
reflecting planned investment
programme implementation

across the Exploration and
Production segment. Free cash

flow? in the reporting period totalled
RUB 1,295 bin.

The net debt / EBITDA ratio

as at the end of 2024 remained
steady at 1.2x, unchanged from

the third quarter, demonstrating
financial stability despite additional
adverse macroeconomic pressures.

RUB 1’084 bln-

Company's net income? in 2024

Includes revenue from sales and income from associates and joint ventures.

Adjustments for prepayments under long-term oil supply contracts (including accrued interest

payments), net changes in subsidiary bank operations and transactions involving securities.

16

Net income attributable to Rosneft's shareholders.

The Company'’s
revenue' for 2024
was RUB 10,139 bin

Annual Report 2024
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HEALTH,
SAFETY AND
ENVIRONMENT

Strategic HSE guidelines and targets

As a national oil and gas champion and a major
global energy company, Rosneft operates

in strict compliance with Russian health, safety
and environment (HSE) regulations.

The Company views human life
as the greatest value and pays
special attention to ensuring safe
working conditions for employees
and contractors, while also taking
steps to prevent occupational

accidents, emergencies, and fires and
to mitigate their impact should such
accidents, emergencies or fires occur.

Strategic HSE targets

Corporate Governance Appendices

th N

The Rosneft-2030
Strategy sets out
strategic HSE targets.

Minimisation
of environmental
footprint

Drive towards:

» zero fatalities and
leadership among Russia’s
leading oil and gas
companies by 2030

» zero equipment
breakdowns by 2030
or sooner

www.rosneft.com

Net positive
impact
on ecosystems

17
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HSE management system and principles

The Company pursues its HSE objectives within the framework of the Integrated

Health, Safety and Environment Management System (IMS).

The system is certified annually

by external auditors to verify that

it meets the national and global HSE
standards.

In 2024, Rosneft and 80 Group
Subsidiaries once again confirmed
their compliance with ISO 45001

and ISO 14001 international standards,
as well as GOST RISO 45001

and GOST RISO 14001 nationall
standards as part of the Company's
overall certification. In addition,

31 Group Subsidiaries completed
independent occupational health
and safety certification (ISO 45001 /
GOST R ISO 45001), and 33 were
certified in the area of environmentall
management (ISO 14001/

GOST RISO 14001).

The HSE IMS certification process
includes more than 100 companies,
which account for 80% of totall
headcount in the Group Subsidiaries
covered by the management
accounting procedures.

Rosneft has designated its HSE
Control and Investigation Department
as the official body responsible

for exercising HSE controls (including
internal HSE IMS audits across Group
Subsidiaries) as a way to ensure

the uniformity and unbiased character
of control procedures applied

to Group Subsidiaries.

18

HSE controls rely on a risk-oriented
approach and leverage distance
control tools. Audits of Group
Subsidiaries include assessment

of their HSE performance. In addition

to the mandatory controls required

by law, the Company employs

the following main types of regular

controls:

» full-scope and ad hoc
inspections to verify compliance
with HSE requirements,
corporate plans and internal
documents of the Company,
as well as the adequacy of ongoing
operational and environmental risk
management efforts;

» internal IMS audits to assess
compliance with the Environmental
Management System (ISO 14001/
GOST RISO 140017) and
Occupational Health and Safety
Management System (ISO 45001/
GOST R ISO 45001) standards.

Following the audits, Group
Subsidiaries prepare corrective action
plans to improve the HSE governance
system.

Rosneft has an HSE Control Commission
responsible for reviewing the audit
findings and developing adequate
remedial initiatives (with emphasis
placed on the elimination of systemic
violations and breaches with a high and
critical emergency risk).

Il A

Rosneft actively contributes
to the development

of HSE regulatory
frameworks. Throughout
2024, Company experts
participated in discussions

of approximately 300 draft
regulations and laws, including
federal laws, Government
resolutions, and departmental
regulations. This engagement
occurred through
collaborative interactions with
key government authorities
(Ministry of Energy, Ministry

of Natural Resources and
Environment, Federal

Service for Supervision

of Natural Resources -
Rosprirodnadzor, and Federal
Environmental, Industrial

and Nuclear Supervision
Service — Rostekhnadzor),
working groups under

the Government Commission
for Administrative Reform, and
committees of the Russian
Union of Industrialists and
Entrepreneurs (RSPP).

Annual Report 2024

Corporate HSE governance

The Board of Directors provides strategic management of the Company’s

About the Company

Corporate

HSE activities and regularly reviews related reports.

The HSE Committee is the Company's
standing coordinating body in charge
of HSE.

In 2024, the HSE Committee met
seven times to adopt resolutions
on the improvement of the safety

5

B

4
S

culture, prevention of occupational
accidents, incidents at hazardous
facilities and traffic accidents,
management of HSE risks, and
mitigation of the environmental

impact.

www.rosneft.com
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Safe working environment

As a national oil and gas champion and a major global energy company,
Rosneft boasts an impressive scale and diversity of operations, which by their
nature require a consistent risk-oriented approach to HSE management.

The Company consistently
implements HSE measures aimed
at achieving strategic goals and
enhancing production safety levels.

The main HSE initiatives in 2024
focused on reducing injury risks and
increasing safety levels through:

» improving the management
of hazardous operations through
the Control of Work procedure —
in 2024, more than 602 thousand
hazardous operations were
conducted under this procedure,
successfully reducing unscheduled
operations;

» applying the HSE Violation
Tickets framework. The number
of participating Group Subsidiaries
increased in 2024, with more
than 610 thousand tickets issued
throughout the year;

» strengthening effective HSE
communications. Four regional
meetings with CEOs of Group
Subsidiaries were held in 2024,
alongside thematic meetings
and forums with Subsidiaries and
contractors addressing critical HSE
issues (fire safety, seismic survey
operations, blowout safety, and
contractor monogement);

» behavioural safety audits featuring
photo evidence to strengthen
occupational safety controls
at sites. In 2024, we carried out over
10 thousand audits;

» implementing targeted monthly
safety campaigns and events
during peak injury-risk periods,
which significantly reduced
employee injury rates during these
vulnerable timeframes;

20

~RUB 65 bin

spent by the Company on HSE
initiatives
in 2024

» expanded internships in the HSE
units for the line managers
of production facilities prior to their
appointment to office. In 2024,
over 746 line managers completed
the internship;

» executing targeted programmes
on fall and road traffic accident
prevention, successfully eliminating
fatal injuries from falls among
Company employees.

To further enhance health and safety
performance, the HSE Committee
has approved a Plan of Key Measures
for Safety Culture Development

for 2025-2026 for subsequent
implementation.

Annual Report 2024

Leadership
and safety culture

Safety culture is a priority area

for the Company. Daily safety
improvement efforts must rely

on an informed approach, while key
safety culture objectives must include
enhancement of informed leadership
and engagement of all stakeholders
in building such leadership. To that

About the Company

end, the Company organises
communication activities for managers
at various levels. These processes

are directly supervised by respective
Vice Presidents. There are feedback
tools in place for employees

to seek advice or submit proposals

on occupational safety improvements.

Corporate Governance Appendices

The Company has approved
systematic approaches with priority
actions for 2024-2025, focusing

on measuring current safety culture
levels, planning development
according to specific elements,
and preparing Group Subsidiaries’
internal trainers for the updated
Leadership and Safety Culture
course.

In 2024, the concept of a systemic approach to developing safety culture
I I within the Company was presented at the HSE Committee. The Company
has defined six key elements in its corporate safety culture system:

Leadership and duties

Responsibility

Competencies and
training

Motivation to operate
safely

Communication and
awareness

Current health and
safety status

www.rosneft.com

Blue-collar employees

Line managers

Management of Group
Subsidiaries

Senior management

CULTURE

|

BEHAVIOUR *—*° e——= CONDITIONS
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In 2024, Rosneft conducted a safety
culture survey in collaboration
with the Company's trade union,
garnering participation from more
than 38 thousand respondents.
The survey encompassed
employees from Group
Subsidiaries across all businesses
and categories - including
blue-collar and white-collar
workers and middle and senior
managers. Thanks to anonymous
and accessible participation
methods, Company employees
had the opportunity not only

to provide objective responses

to the questionnaire, but also

to document their observations
and suggestions for safety culture
enhancement. Based on the survey
findings, the Company formulated
further improvement initiatives
focused on strengthening HSE
communications with employees,
increasing personnel involvement
in addressing production safety
challenges, and other key areas.
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Contractor relations

Reducing injuries among people
employed by the Company and our
contractors/subcontractors is one
of our top priorities.

In 2024, the Company approved
a new version of the Internal
Regulations on the Procedure
for Interaction with Contractors
on Occupational and Fire Safety,
Health, and Environment Issues.
This document includes updated
provisions of the previous version
and introduces new ones related
to contractor ratings and the audit
of contractors management
systems employed by Group
Subsidiaries.

The Company has successfully
implemented an automated
module for calculating contractors'
HSE ratings, which evaluates
performance by tracking incident
numbers, identified violations, etc.

Risk-oriented
approach

The aim of HSE risk management

is to introduce and maintain
adequate and sufficient
management actions regarding all
identified risks that are consistent with
the level of the risk assessed, provided
with the necessary resources
allocated by priority and approved
on the required management level

of the Company.

Application of the risk-oriented
approach in HSE risk management
includes assessment, analysis and
management taking into account
global and industry best practices,
and helps predict possible events and
take proactive steps to prevent them.

HSE risk management is a set

of tools helping managers at various
levels, from senior executives to line

Annual Report 2024

managers, to make the best
and most efficient decisions
on operational safety.

The Company has developed
standardised scenarios addressing
the most frequently occurring

risks, defining a set of proactive

and reactive barriers (measures)

for a particular type of incident.
Based on standard solutions, Group
Subsidiaries develop programmes
to create and enhance barriers.

In 2024, the Company focused on risk
management for equipment whose
operation could potentially cause
incidents with serious consequences
for people and the environment.

www.rosneft.com
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The Company also applies

the risk-oriented barrier approach

to the investigation of HSE incidents
and development of remedial actions.

With the Rosneft-2030 Strategy

in place, the risk-oriented approach
remains the central element in HSE
and covers the full cycle of operations,
from planning to performance
audits. Process safety in line with

the proactive and risk-oriented
approach results in a set of measures
aimed at achieving the Company'’s
safety targets. These measures

are aimed not only at preventing
accidents, but also at mitigating
potential adverse consequences,
primarily for people, society and

the environment.

Corporate Governance

Appendices

Process safety and
the integrity of facilities
and equipment

The Company complies with national
and corporate regulations on process
safety. Operational functions and HSE
units of Group Subsidiaries oversee
both the planning and implementation
of necessary actions when developing
operational programmes and business
plans, while also monitoring their
implementation.

In pursuing the Company's strategic
goal of achieving zero equipment
accidents (PSER-1) through enhanced
integrity management of production

23
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facilities and equipment, Rosneft

implements several key programmes

and measures:

» replacement of field pipelines
in Exploration and Production
as part of the programme to improve
the reliability of field pipelines;

» maintenance and repair of tanks
and tank farms within the framework
of 2024 action plans designed
to enhance the reliability of tanks
and tank farm infrastructure
in Exploration and Production,

Oil Refining and Petrochemicals,
Commerce and Logistics, and
Regional Sales;

» implementing integrity maintenance
programmes in Refining and
Petrochemicals.

The Company continues refining

its HSE risk assessment process,
focusing on identifying the most
hazardous equipment while
accounting for actual process safety
measures at the facilities where

such equipment operates. In this
context, unified risk management
approaches have been revised, with
equipment now ranked according

to potential harm levels and visualised
on a risk matrix. Prevention of major
accidents is incorporated as a KPI

for both the Vice President for HSE and
Environment and the heads of HSE.

The Company has developed

and implemented a methodology
for calculating oil and petroleum
product spill volumes. Using this
data, analysis has been conducted,
generating recommendations

for corrective measures aimed

at preventing field pipeline
depressurisation and minimising land
contamination consequences.

Within the existing personnel
competency improvement system,
Rosneft is implementing additional
measures to systematically enhance
welding quality. These include

24
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the development of a comprehensive
roadmap with clearly defined
implementation stages and

the establishment of a corporate
centre for welder training and
certification, technologies, and
equipment.

Recognising the significant influence
of human error on technological
equipment depressurisation
incidents, the Company actively
implements proactive measures

to ensure production safety. Key
focus areas include work safety
organisation, analysis of impacts from
simultaneous operations at single
sites, and safety culture development
that fosters employees' conscious
approach to their actions, decisions,
and behaviours. This approach,
informed by incident cause analysis
in recent years, plays a crucial role

in maintaining production equipment
and facility integrity.

Regular analysis of Process
Safety Events (PSE) related

to equipment depressurisation
and monitoring of measure/
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programme implementation occurs

on an ongoing basis. The effectiveness
of implemented measures undergoes
quarterly evaluation and is presented
at HSE Council and HSE Committee
meetings, where strategic decisions
aimed at achieving the zero accident
rate goal are made.

Road traffic safety

To achieve its production objectives,

the Company uses different types

of vehicles. In 2024, Rosneft continued

implementing its Road Safety Concept

for 2020-2030, executing a set

of measures aimed at preventing road

traffic accidents. These initiatives

included:

» equipping the Company's and
contractors’ vehicles using in-vehicle
monitoring systems and video
recorders;

» conducting regular monitoring and
analysis of drivers' compliance with
speed limits across both Group
Subsidiaries and contractors;

Annual Report 2024

» performing systematic inspections
to identify hazardous road
sections and assess the adequacy
of information signs, direction
indicators, and information boards.
This work included installing signal
markers on snow-covered and
dangerous road sections along field
routes, temporary winter roads, site
roads, and industrial access ways.
Additional safety measures involved
installing warning road signs and
surveillance cameras to record
violations;

» inspecting the condition
of transport infrastructure and
performing maintenance work,
including monitoring the timely
cleaning and treatment of road
surfaces, assessing the condition

. ¥ .. téﬁ'&cﬁ .vif'u i
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of ice roads / fast ice / surfaces
(rivers, lakes, swamps, seas)

and winter roads, and verifying

the readiness of special equipment
for the autumn-winter period;
running accident prevention
campaigns such as “Say No to Road
Accidents” and “Summer with No
Road Accidents”;

inspections to ensure compliance
with safety requirements related

to transportation of people

and cargo and trip planning
arrangements, compliance

with work and rest schedules

by drivers of Group Subsidiaries
and contractors using in-vehicle
monitoring systems;

Corporate Governance Appendices

» running initiatives to prevent
child injuries in cooperation with
the traffic police, including by raising
awareness about road traffic safety
rules and holding children’s drawing
contests on traffic safety;

» actively promoting Al-powered
driver and vehicle operation
monitoring projects based
on the Unified Corporate Telematics
Platform.

Group Subsidiaries continued
implementing their road traffic safety
programmes, which incorporate
barrier-forming measures designed
to prevent road traffic accidents.
Implementation of these programmes
will continue throughout 2025.
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Environmental responsibility

The Company consistently implements environmental initiatives and green
investment projects to achieve its strategic targets of minimising environmental
footprint and creating a positive overall impact on ecosystems, including
facilitating biodiversity conservation in the regions of operation.

Green investments

In 2024, the Company's green
investments totalled roughly RUB 74 bin
and targeted large environmental
projects, including projects to improve
pipeline reliability, reduce pollutant
emissions, and streamline water
management.

Environmental
management

The Company consistently
manages environmental protection
and responsible use of natural
resources, complies with the UN
sustainable development principles
and goals, and develops a long-
term environmental agenda based
on the Rosneft-2030 Strategy and
the 2035 Environmental Vision.

In line with national and corporate
priorities, the Company consistently
pays special attention to air

~RUB 74 bin

in green investments
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protection initiatives. As part

of production modernisation
programmes and the Gas Investment
Programme, facilities develop

APG utilisation infrastructure,
construct desulphurisation and
sulphur production plants, build
flaring systems, etc. Several

Group Subsidiaries participate

in an experiment involving quota-
based emission of priority pollutants
under the Clean Air federal project,
with work underway to comply with
the approved quotas.

One of the Company'’s strategic
priorities is to minimise demand

for fresh water in alignment with

the United Nations Sustainable
Development Goals. Achievement
of this goal is ensured through

the implementation of infrastructure
modernisation projects, including
construction and reconstruction

of water treatment facilities,

and the use of best available
technologies. Rosneft keeps improving
its approaches to waste handling

in line with the applicable Russian
laws. In 2024, the Company processed
more than 3.8 mmt of drilling waste
and over 1 mmt of oil-contaminated
waste, which enabled it to dispose

of the waste in the reporting year and
reduce the amount of legacy waste.

The Company continues to restore
land resources by reducing the area
of contaminated land, with over

400 ha remediated (around 80%
owing to the efforts of internal
ecological services established by key
Group Subsidiaries).

In 2022, the Company started
implementing a programme

to eliminate environmental legacy
effects, which aims to fully eliminate
land contaminated and waste
generated as a result of past
activities of previous owners of assets
prior to their integration into Rosneft.
As part of this programme, Rosneft
remediated more than 280 ha of land
contaminated with legacy waste,
including over 45 ha in 2024.

In 2024, the elimination

of environmental legacy

effects was fully completed

at Samotlorneftegaz and the Saratov
Refinery.

Annual Report 2024

Biodiversity
conservation and
forest reproduction

The Rosneft-2030 Strategy includes

a strategic goal to achieve a net
positive impact on ecosystems,
including through the implementation
of biodiversity conservation measures,
which defines a comprehensive
approach to the Company's
large-scale projects in this area.

In 2024, Rosneft and the Ministry

of Natural Resources and Environment
signed an agreement for the Company
to implement several activities

in 2024-2027 under the Conservation
of Biological Diversity and Ecological
Tourism Development federal project.
The agreement provides for Arctic
research work related to studying

the polar bear and its habitat,
assessing wild reindeer population
status, examining valuable bioresource
species in the Yenisei River estuary,
and evaluating the state of wetlands
of international importance protected
under the Ramsar Convention.

www.rosneft.com
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Tamura, Rosneft's new biodiversity
conservation programme,

was established under an agreement
with the Ministry of Natural Resources
and Environment. The name derives
from the ancient Tungusic word,

to which the Taimyr Peninsula

(focus area for the programme's

new research activities) also owes

its name.

This document was prepared

as a continuation of the corporate
biodiversity conservation
programme, which was carried out
as part of the Environment national
project since 2020 and successfully
completed in 2023. During this period,
Rosneft implemented a targeted
innovative project to assess

the stability of Arctic ecosystems
based on the study of key indicator
species, including polar bear, Atlantic
walrus, wild reindeer, and ivory gull.
The high scientific value of the work
conducted with the participation

of the country's leading research
institutions was recognised

by the Ministry of Natural Resources
and Environment, the Federal

Corporate Governance Appendices

Agency for Fishery, and the scientific
community. The data obtained also
serve as d foundation for planning
the Company's environmental
protection measures in the Far North
regions.

Rosneft views forestation projects

as a key tool for achieving

long-term operational carbon
neutrality. In partnership with

the Government of the Krasnoyarsk
Territory, the Company is running

a comprehensive forestation project
that seeks to harness the climate-
regulating potential of the region's
forests and contribute to sustainable
development. On top of that, Rosneft
is exploring the carbon sequestration
capacity of other ecosystems,
including through grant support

for universities.

""11 min

seedlings

planted by Group
Subsidiaries in 2024
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CARBON MANAGEMENT -
RISKAND OPPORTUNITY
MANAGEMENT

The Company aims to achieve carbon neutrality

by 2050 for its Scope 1 and Scope 2 emissions.

The Rosneft-2030 Strategy supports Russia’s Long-
Term Development Strategy with Low Greenhouse
Gas Emissions to 2050 and contributes to achieving
17 UN Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs).

The Company plans to achieve its strategic goals through
I I a comprehensive suite of greenhouse gas reduction solutions

25% reduction in Scope 1
and 2 emissions by 2035
as compared to 2020

Reduction of methane intensity
to below 0.2%

@ 0.

Achievement of zero routine APG

flaring in line with the World Bank's technological capabilities, with

Zero Routine Flaring by 2030 a focus on carbon capture and

initiative storage innovations, alongside
offsetting greenhouse gas
emissions through natural
absorption projects

Advancement of the Company's

28 Annual Report 2024

The Rosneft-2030 Strategy seeks
to reduce the Company's carbon
footprint and boost its operational
and financial efficiency.

Rosneft successfully implemented

a comprehensive programme

for detecting and eliminating fugitive
hydrocarbon emissions, including

methane, across its production assets.

In 2024, this programme extended

to 26 production Subsidiaries

of the Group, with surface inspections
carried out at more than 800 facilities
of production sites. Additionally,

the Company deployed unmanned

About the Company

aerial vehicles (drones) to conduct
monitoring across 13 Group

Subsidiaries, inspecting more than
3 thousand km of pipelines in total.

In 2024, Rosneft began expanding
its fugitive hydrocarbon (including
methane) emissions detection and
elimination programme to include

to include its other production assets
in 2024, completing surveys in five
Group Subsidiaries.

Rosneft also continues to improve
its carbon reporting system
in accordance with the Russian

1 Task Force on Climate-Related Financial Disclosures.

www.rosneft.com
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laws, recommendations of the Bank
of Russia and internationally
recognised approaches, including
TCFD recommendations.

The Company closely monitors

the evolution of sustainability

and climate disclosure standards
developed by the International
Financial Reporting Standards
Foundation (IFRS Foundation).
Climate change and associated risks
and opportunities are effectively
integrated into Rosneft's corporate
governance system.

3,000..

of pipelines inspected using
drones
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About the Company Corporate Governance

Appendices

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

Key corporate governance
principles and improvements
in 2024

30

Rosneft's leading
market position, both
domestically and globally,

and its commitment

to increasing long-term
sustainable shareholder

value make it of the utmost
importance that our corporate
governance framework ensures
efficient communication

and cooperation between

the shareholders, Board
members, top managers,
employees, business partners,
and local communities across
the Company’s footprint.

Rosneft's corporate
governance framework
is aimed to drive

the long-term
sustainable growth

of the Company's
shareholder value.

Annual Report 2024

Rosneft's corporate governance
framework relies on the Corporate
Governance Code developed
under internationally acclaimed
corporate governance standards.

For evaluation of compliance

with the Bank of Russia’s Code, see
Appendix to this Annual Report.

The internal documents regulating
corporate governance are available
on the Company'’s official website.

Key achievements
in 2024

Amidst the persistent instability

in the external business environment,
including the Bank of Russia's record-
high effective rate and foreign trade
restrictions imposed by unfriendly
states, the Board of Directors and
management successfully ensured
continuous and efficient performance
of the Company’s governing bodies
and structural units. They maintained
robust production processes, boosted
revenue while reducing the net

debt / EBITDA ratio, and guaranteed
full exercise of shareholder rights.

In 2024, the Company went on with

the share buyback programme
approved by the Board of Directors.

www.rosneft.com

Combined with a consistent dividend
policy and high corporate governance
standards, this propelled Rosneft

to become a market capitalisation
leader in the Russian stock market.

2024 saw undiminishing investor
interest in the Company's shares.
The number of shareholders

as at the end of 2024 exceeded
1.5 million compared to 1.3 million
in 2023.

Rosneft maintains
compliance with the Bank
of Russia's Corporate
Governance Code at a high
level.

1

Corporate
governance
plans for 2025

» Further improve remote
engagement formats
for parties involved
in Rosneft's corporate
relations and other
stakeholders.
Carry out an independent
assessment of Rosneft's
Board of Directors’
performance.
Ensure timely information
disclosure in the stock market.
Continue implementing
goals and objectives
outlined in the Rosneft-2030
Strategy and increasing
the Company'’s shareholder
value.
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Guiding principles for the Company’s
governing bodies
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Favourable environment
for sustainable growth

Innovation and
global leadership

Commitment to shareholders

Rosneft has adopted the world's best corporate
governance practices and complies with

the Bank of Russia's Corporate Governance
Code to ensure the following:

Continuous improvement and global leadership
are the priorities that encourage us to develop
and invest in cutting-edge technologies.

The Company cares for its employees, their
families, and members of local communities
across its footprint.

» equal rights and opportunities for, and
equitable treatment of all shareholders;

» professionalism and independence
of the Board of Directors who act in the best 5 o e ]

interests of all shareholders; o 000 . . )
e ee services, health improvement and resort
» efficiency of the Risk Management atnss treatment, disease prevention, and promotion
and Internal Control System (RM&ICS); ﬁ ateld of a healthy lifestyle.
)

» well-balanced disclosure of information
~ on the Company's activities that is most relevant
to shareholders and investors for them to rely
on in making informed decisions (Corporate
Governance Code).

The Company takes care of the environment
by introducing carbon management initiatives
and implementing best waste management

K PrOteCtion Of shareholders practices. Commitment to environmental
and key stakeholders

safety is an integral part of our corporate
culture. The Company supports scientific
research, culture, and sports. Rosneft respects
and honours human rights and freedoms
in accordance with the Universal Declaration
of Human Rights, Social Charter of Russian
Business, relevant generally accepted

o standards, and the laws of the Russian

\ Federation and other countries where

the Company operates.

A substantial share of the Company'’s net

income is distributed as dividends. The Company implements best internal

control and risk management practices, _
develops technologies for industrial safety ;
and information security, and ensures product
safety, protecting its customers and contractors.

We continue enhancing Shareholder's Personal
Account, a powerful tool for shareholders to stay
in contact with the Company.

Annual Report 2024 www.rosneft.com

We at Rosneft keep a clear focus on employee
health. The Company systematically implements

a0 s s 0 0 s 0" health protection measures aimed at providing
""" its employees with timely and quality healthcare

Corporate Governance Appendices

Partnership with non-
governmental organisations
and cooperation

with state institutions

The Company is a party to the UN Global
Compact. Rosneft makes a significant
contribution to the revenue part of the national
budget.


https://rosneft.ru/upload/site1/document_file/RU_P3-01_KS-01_izm1.pdf
https://rosneft.ru/upload/site1/document_file/RU_P3-01_KS-01_izm1.pdf
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Governance and control structure

The Company operates a two-tier management
model where management functions are split between
the Board of Directors and executive bodies.

Board of Directors

The Board of Directors performs the two key functions:

» strategic management of the joint-stock
company on behalf of and for the benefit of all
shareholders, which includes approving strategic
documents and material transactions;

» oversight of the executive bodies.

l

Election
Reporting

Executive bodies

» Under the Russian laws, the Chief Executive Officer (sole executive
body) is authorised to act on behalf of the Company without a power of

attorney.

» Rosneft has established a collective executive body (Management
Board) chaired by the Chief Executive Officer. Pursuant to the laws of the
Russian Federation, the Management Board and its members (except
for the CEO) are not authorised to enter into transactions or execute
legal acts on behalf of the Company without a power of attorney.

General Shareholders Meeting

Board of Directors

Rosneft's supreme governing body responsible for decision-making on key matters
of the Company'’s business.

Vam Reporting

Reporting, set-up, assessment

Administrative subordination

[

Reporting

Set-up

Committees of the Board of Directors

Provides strategic management of the Company'’s activities; it reports
to the General Shareholders Meeting and acts on behalf and for the benefit of all
shareholders within its remit.

Audit Committee

Reviews and then issues
recommendations

for overseeing the Company'’s
business, preparing complete
and accurate accounting
(inancial) statements and other
reports, and ensuring reliability
and effectiveness of risk
management and internal
control systems, compliance,
internal audit, and corporate
governance

HR and Remuneration
Committee

Reviews and then issues
recommendations for assessing
effectiveness of the Company'’s
HR and succession policies
and the appointment

and remuneration

system, evaluating Board

and management candidates,
reviewing independence

of independent directors,

and conducting performance
assessments of the Board

of Directors, the executive bodies,
and top managers of the Company

Strategy and Sustainable
Development Committee

Assists in defining

the Company'’s strategic goals
and growth targets, including
ESG goals, and issues
strategic and business
planning recommendations

About the Company

Corporate Governance Appendices

Executive bodies (Chief Executive Officer and Management Board)

Executive bodies manage the day-to-day
operations for the benefit of the Company
and report to the Board of Directors

and the General Shareholders Meeting.

Creation

Coordinating and consultative bodies

Chief Executive Officer
Sole executive body

Management Board
Collective executive body

Coordinating and consultative bodies of the Chief
Executive Officer carry out in-depth reviews
of matters that are reserved to them.
These bodies include:
Technological Council
Investment Committee
Budget Committee
Compliance Committee
Metrology Board
Carbon Management Committee

HSE Committee

Central Procurement Committee

Conflict Resolution Committee;
Commission on Energy Efficiency
Information Technology Expert Council
other coordinating and consultative bodies
of the Company

Head of the Internal Audit Service and Corporate Secretary

are appointed by the Board of Directors

|
\ J
Internal Audit Service

Assesses the robustness and effectiveness

of the Company's business processes, identifies
internal potential for improving its financial

and business performance, including that

of the Group Subsidiaries

Service is in direct contact
with the Committee

Head of the Internal Audit

N

External auditor

A commercial organisation selected through

a procurement process and approved

by the General Shareholders Meeting upon
recommendation of the Board of Directors based
on the Audit Committee’s assessment

4\

Appointing
|

Functional subordination

D

Corporate Secretary

Ensures the governing bodies' compliance

with the applicable laws, the Company Charter
and internal regulations, which guarantee
protection of shareholders’ rights and legitimate
interests. Organises the work of the Board

of Directors and is responsible for efficient
communication between the Company's
shareholders, governing and supervisory bodies,
and management

)

Audit Commission

Oversees the Company's financial and business
operations and performance of its governing
bodies, executives, business units and functions,
branches and representative offices

4\

Election
|
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GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS MEETING

In 2024, the Company's supreme body met
twice — for one Annual (FY2023) and one
Extraordinary General Shareholders Meeting.

Annual General

Shareholders Meeting

Pursuant to Article 3 of Federal Law
No. 25-FZ dated 25 February 2022,
the Board of Directors had resolved
to use absentee voting as the format
for the Company's Annual General
Shareholders Meeting, which was held

the Board of Directors and the Audit
Commission, determined

the remuneration of the Board

and Audit Commission members

for the period, and approved

the Company's Auditor.

on 28 June 2024 (vote by means
of ballots).

The meeting approved the Annual
Report, annual accounting (financial)
statements and net income
distribution for 2023 (including

for dividend payment), elected

Extraordinary General
Shareholders Meeting

As part of implementing its dividend policy,
on 23 December 2024 the Company held
an Extraordinary General Shareholders
Meeting by absentee voting, which
resolved to pay interim dividends.

36
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The procedure

for convening, preparing
for, holding and following
up on the General
Shareholders Meeting

is set forth by

Rosneft's Regulations

on the General
Shareholders Meeting.

2
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Exercise of rights by shareholders

Rosneft shareholders
may exercise their

right to take part

in the Company's General
Shareholders Meeting by:

» participation (registration
and voting) at in-person
meetings (directly or through their
representatives acting by virtue
of a power of attorney);

» absentee voting (voting by paper
ballots or giving voting instructions
to their respective nominees);

» e-voting through the Shareholder’s
Personal Account.

Given special legal frameworks
introduced by the Russian President
in certain regions, which provide

for potential travel constraints,

the Board of Directors decided to hold
the 2024 General Shareholders Meeting
in absentia.

In the meantime, the shareholders
were enabled to fully take
part in corporate procedures
via the Company's corporate services
and remote engagement tools.
The shareholders were able to carry
out the following activities remotely:
» review the information
on the meeting on the corporate
website and in their personal
accounts;
» vote on the items on the agenda
via their personal accounts,
by sending completed ballots
to the Company, or giving voting
instructions to their respective
nominees;

Increase in the number of shareholders
I I over the past three years, ‘000 people

Corporate Governance Appendices

» ask questions on the agenda
via their personal accounts,
the shareholder hotline, or by mail.

Taking into account current changes
in the corporate law, related,
among other things, to holding
General Shareholders Meetings
online (regardless of the location
and the possibility to be present
there), and also bearing in mind
the persisting upward trend

in the number of shareholders (over
1.5 million), Rosneft is still focused
on developing electronic services
for shareholders and other remote
communication channels.

796.6
659.7
+136,800
+20.7%
2022 2022
(Jun) (Nov)

Number of shareholders

www.rosneft.com

1,136.8
898.5
+101,900 +238,400 +188,800
+26.5% +16.6%
2023 2023
(Jun) (Nov)

Increase in the number of shareholders vs previous period

1,499.0
1,325.6
+173,400
+13.1%
2024 2024
(Jun) (Nov)
37
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Elected by the General Shareholders Meeting, the Board of Directors provides strategic
management of the Company’s activities on behalf and for the benefit of all shareholders.

The Board of Directors seeks

to balance interests of all shareholder
groups in order to ensure long-

term sustainable development

of the Company.

The Board of Directors plays a key
role in setting up and developing
the corporate governance system
and supervises the work of executive
bodies.

The committees are composed

of non-executive directors from
the Company’s Board of Directors.
Members of each committee also
include independent directors.
The Audit Committee is chaired
by an independent director.

The committees of the Board of Directors

are responsible for the preliminary
consideration of most important matters
and the provision of recommendations
to the Board of Directors to inform their
decisions.

The committees operate

in accordance with approved

plans to address the objectives set
by the Board of Directors during their
tenures.

In accordance with the Company’s
Regulations on Rosneft Board
Committees, each of the existing
committees submits to the Board

of Directors an annual progress
report. The Board of Directors
positively assessed the performance
of the committees in the 2023-2024
corporate year.

The Board of Directors has
III three standing committees:

Audit Committee

HR and Remuneration Committee

Strategy and Sustainable Development Committee
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The Company has

an Internal Audit
Service reporting

to the Board

of Directors. In 2024,
the Board of Directors
approved reports

on internal audit
activities for 2023 and
TH 2024, confirming
the organisational
independence

of the Internal Audit
Service, and individual
independence

and impartiality

of internal auditors,
as well as absence

of restrictions

that might affect
performance

of the Internal Audit
Service.
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Responsibilities
of the Audit Committee

The Committee assists the Board of Directors
in protecting the interests of the Company's
shareholders by checking the accounting
(inancial) statements and other reports

for completeness and accuracy and ensuring
reliability and effectiveness of risk
management and internal control systems,
compliance, internal audit, and corporate
governance.

In 2024, the Audit Committee reviewed the
Company's financial results and the findings
of the independent audit of the Company’s
financial statements.

N\

Responsibilities
of the Strategy
and Sustainable

Development Committee

The Committee assists the Board of Directors
in providing strategic management of

the Company'’s activities and protecting
shareholders' interests by overseeing
Rosneft's strategy and sustainable
development.

In 2024, the Committee made
recommendations to the Board of Directors
on a number of strategic business projects,
preliminarily reviewed the 2023 Sustainability
Report, as well as HSE reports and audit
results of the Company's Long-Term
Development Programme.

www.rosneft.com
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Responsibilities of the HR and \
Remuneration Committee

The Committee assists the Board of Directors

in protecting shareholder interests. To that end,

it is primarily tasked with assessing the effectiveness
of the Company’s HR and succession policies,

and the appointment and remuneration system;
conducting performance assessments of the Board
of Directors, the executive bodies, and other top
managers of the Company.

In 2024, the Committee reviewed the matter

of assessing the independence and professionall
qualification of the candidates to Rosneft's Board
of Directors, Rosneft's top management's collective
and individual KPIs for 2024, normalised KPI
performance criteria for 2023, and actual results.

Assessment of the Board
I I I of Directors’
performance
Posscrasos it ei o

The Company assesses its Board of Directors'
performance on a regular basis.

In 2024, Rosneft's Board reviewed its self-
assessment of the performance in the corporate
year 2023/2024 as preliminarily approved by the HR
and Remuneration Committee. The directors
expressed a high opinion of the Board's
performance in the reporting period. It was noted
that the composition, collective qualification and
professional competencies of the Board are in line
with the Company's current objectives and needs.

An external assessment of the Board's performance

by an independent consultant to be determined
by a resolution of the Board is planned for 2025.
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ANTI-CORRUPTION
POLICY AND
MEASURES TO COMBAT
CORRUPTION AND
PREVENT CONFLICTS
OF INTEREST

Rosneft works to maintain compliance with the requirements

of the anti-corruption laws of the Russian Federation, including
through a set of measures aimed at building an organisational
structure and elements of corporate culture, and establishing
rules and procedures to prevent corporate fraud and corruption.

This work is being done in accordance
with the requirements of Federal

Law No. 273-FZ On Combating
Corruption dated 25 December 2008,
and of the National Anti-Corruption
Plan for 2021-2024 approved

by Presidential Executive Order

No. 478 dated 16 August 2021.

POCHE<DTb

Anti-corruption measures

are compliant with the guidelines

of the Russian Ministry of Labour and
the Federal Agency for State Property
Management.

All of the Company's governing bodies
contributed to these efforts within
their remit.

1. Rosneft's Board of Directors
(Audit Committee of the Board
of Directors) approved strategic
documents and guiding
principles, and regularly assesses
the efficiency of such efforts;
considered and approved
the results of a review of the anti-
corruption risk management
and internal control process.

2. Rosneft's Chief Executive Officer
ensures the implementation
of the Company's Policy
on Combating Corporate Fraud

e 308.0 .

amount of damage prevented following
the review of Security Hotline calls
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and Involvement in Corruption
Activities, and approves
the relevant internal regulations.

3. In accordance with the National
Anti-Corruption Plan for 2021-2024
approved by Presidential Executive
Order No. 478 dated 16 August
2021 (Instruction of the Russian
Government No. MM-P17-12165
dated 6 September 2021)
we drafted a Comprehensive
Anti-Fraud and Anti-Corruption
Programme for 2021-2024 (approved
by Rosneft's Compliance Committee
on 20 June 2022, Minutes No. KK-1).

In the reporting period the Company:

» drafted a business process
regulation on the Procedure
for Verifying Information Received
Through the Security Hotline
Channels and had it approved
by Rosneft's Order No. 46 dated
24 February 2024;

» updated its employees,
on a quarterly basis, on typical
violations of anti-fraud and anti-
corruption rules;

» assessed/reassessed the risk
of corporate fraud and corruption
on a quarterly basis in line with
the approved methodology.

14174

reports received by the Security
Hotline

www.rosneft.com
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The Company manages conflicts

of interest at all governance

levels. The rules for the avoidance
and prevention of conflicts of interest
are set forth in the Code of Business
and Corporate Ethics, the Company's
Policy on Combating Corporate
Fraud and Involvement in Corruption
Activities, and the Regulations

on Managing Conflicts of Interest.

The Regulations set out a framework
to classify conflicts of interest,
including conflicts of interest
between shareholders and members
of the Company's governing bodies
(e.g. decisions made by corporate
governing bodies that might
adversely affect the Company'’s
financial and operating performance;
the Company failing to make

a statutory disclosure or members

of corporate governing bodies
underreporting on their positions

in governing bodies of other entities,
on interests (stakes) held in other
entities, or other information required
to be disclosed by the applicable
laws, the Company's Charter

or internal regulations).

Corporate Governance Appendices

The Board members' obligations

to disclose a conflict of interest

are set out in the Regulation

on Holding by Members of Rosneft
Board of Directors of Rosneft Shares,
Shares of and Equity Stakes in Group
Subsidiaries.

In addition, the Company annually:

» carries out a campaign
to collect ethical declarations
of the Company's officers and
employees in order to monitor
their compliance with restrictions,
prohibitions and requirements
of anti-corruption laws;

» requires new hires and employees
appointed to new positions to sign
an anti-corruption clause, which
formed part of their employment
contracts and included restrictions,
prohibitions, and requirements aimed
at preventing the conflict of interest;

» collects information on income,
property, and property-related
obligations of its officers/
employees, as well as on income,
property, and property-related
obligations of their spouses
and minor children who are included
in the list of persons required
to submit such declarations.

41



III
lll'l']
ROSNEFT

Group Subsidiaries have set up
conflict of interest commissions.

The Company runs ongoing corporate
training programmes in the field

of countering corporate fraud and
corruption for its employees, including
those whose job responsibilities
include participation in combating
corruption, and new hires.

The Company operates a 24/7
Security Hotline to report

on suspected, proven and potential
cases of corporate fraud, corruption
and conflict of interest.
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In 2024, the Security Hotline received
14174 reports, with 213 violations
confirmed. Prevented damage
amounted to RUB 308.0 min.

The information on the Security
Hotline operation is reviewed
by Rosneft's Audit Committee.

The Corruption Control section
on the official corporate website has:
» the Company's statement
on zero tolerance for any form
or manifestation of corporate fraud
and corruption;

» links to key provisions of Russian
and applicable international anti-
corruption laws;

» information on the Security Hotline;

» links to the Company's reports
providing results of its anti-
corruption efforts.

Annual Report 2024

About the Company

AUDIT COMMISSION

Corporate Governance Appendices

The Audit Commission monitors the Company's financial and business

activities and comprises five members elected on an annual

basis by the Annual General Shareholders Meeting.

The Audit Commission audits

the Company'’s financial and business

operations, verifies the accuracy
and reliability of data included

in Rosneft's annual reports

and annual accounting (financial)
statements, and prepares proposals
and recommendations for improving
the asset management efficiency
and risk management and internal
control system.

Vi

www.rosneft.com

In 2024, the Audit Commission held
two meetings, which, among other
things, adopted its action plan

and approved an audit programme.

The findings of the Audit Commission
following the audit were communicated
as part of the materials for the General
Shareholders Meeting in the form

of an opinion of the Audit Commission
on the accuracy and reliability of data

included in Rosneft's Annual Report
and annual accounting (financial)
statements as at 31 December 2023.

On 28 June 2024, the Annual General
Shareholders Meeting resolved

to elect a five-member Audit
Commission.
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POLICY ON THE RISK MANAGEMENT
AND INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

Rosneft has established and is continuously improving its Risk Management
and Internal Control System (RM&ICS) aimed at proactive identification
and analysis of risks that may impact the Company’s long-term targets

as well as its ongoing financial and business operations.

44

To develop a well-structured and integrated risk management
and internal control system, the Company has put in place

a multi-level regulatory framework in this area, which
outlines key RM&ICS principles at various stages.

Company policy

» Policy on the Risk
Management and
Internal Control System

Company regulations
and standard
requirements

» Regulations on Design,
Implementation and Maintenance
of the Internal Control System

» Regulations on Market Risk
Management

» Regulations on Development
and Use of the Company-Wide
Register of Standard Risks and —
Controls I::‘@

Company standards

» Standard on Risk Management

and Internal Control System

» Standard on the Corporate-

Wide Risk Management System

(CWRMS)

Methodological

guidelines

» Guidelines for Determining and

Applying Risk Appetite

» Risk Assessment Guidelines

Annual Report 2024
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The Company has implemented the processes of identification, assessment and management of:

» strategic risks that may affect
the achievement of long-term

targets;

I I Key principles

Main risk types

Short-term targets

First-year targets outlined in
the Company's business plan

» financial and operational risks

that may affect the performance
against Rosneft's current business
plan; goals.

Medium-term and long-
term targets

Targets outlined in
the Company's development strategy

Corporate Governance Appendices

» business process risks that
may affect the achievement
of the Company's business process

> 5 years and more

1year % > 3years

Corporate financial and

Strategic risks and threats

operational risks

Principle
of integration

Principle of full
responsibility

Principle

of adaptability
and RM&ICS
enhancement

Principle
of reasonable
assurance

The principles and objectives

of the RM&ICS are set out

in the Company'’s Policy on the Risk
Management and Internal Control
System' developed in accordance with

» Principle > Principle » Principle
of separation

of continuity of optimality

of duties and powers

RM&ICS
operating » Principle of
principles reasonableness
in formalising
control
procedures and
documenting
» Principle . . RM&ICS
of methodological g Pr!naple of risk
) . oriented approach
integrity

the Russian regulatory requirements
and drawing on recommendations
of international firms engaged in risk
management, internal control and

audit services. These are intended
to provide reasonable assurance that
Rosneft will achieve its goals.

1 Rosneft’s Policy on the Risk Management and Internal Control System No. P4-05 P-01 approved by Resolution of the Company's Board of Directors
(Minutes No. 15 dated 13 December 2021).

www.rosneft.com
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RM&ICS stakeholders

Rosneft's RM&ICS has various stakeholders whose roles

are distributed depending on their involvement in developing,

introducing and monitoring the performance of the system.
The RM&ICS has three management levels.

Strategic level

Operational level

Board of Directors
and Audit Committee

of the Board of Directors

» Define RM&ICS principles and
approaches

» Approve RM&ICS focus areas
and follow up on their progress

» Approve corporate reports
on financial and operational
risks

» Approve risk appetite

» Make sure the RM&ICS
performance is analysed and
evaluated

» Monitor the RM&ICS reliability
and performance

Chief Executive
Officer

» Validates RM&ICS focus
areas

» Validates RM&ICS reports

» Validates risk appetite

Management

» Distributes roles and
responsibilities among employees

» Manages risks

» Develops and implements control
procedures

» Conducts self-assessment
of internal controls

Risk Management
Committee

» Validates the RM&ICS
issues reported
to the Chief Executive
Officer

» Resolves RM&ICS
operational disputes

Risk and Internal Control
Methodology Department

» Plans RM&ICS focus areas

» Develops, implements and updates
Company-wide RM&ICS guidelines

» Prepares reports on risks and internal
controls

» Manages the RM&ICS roll-out and
operation across Rosneft's business
units and Group Subsidiaries

» Provides guidelines to key RM&ICS
stakeholders and trains them in risk
management and internal controls

Annual Report 2024

Security Service

» Develops, updates,
and introduces internal
anti-fraud and anti-
corruption regulations and
implementing documents

» Participates in ensuring
compliance with
internal regulations and
implementing anti-fraud and
anti-corruption initiatives
introduced by Rosneft's
executive bodies

» Manages the Security
Hotline

» Conducts inspections/
investigations into abusive/
unlawful practices
by the Company's
employees and third parties

www.rosneft.com
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Business units
performing certain
RM&ICS functions

» Prepare and consolidate
RM&ICS reports

» Manage the roll-out
of RM&ICS elements
and develop proposals
for the risk management
methodology

» Assist the Company'’s
management in conducting
self-assessment of internal
controls

Employees

» Implement risk management
controls and initiatives

» Assist the Company's
management in managing risks

» Help identify, assess and report
on risks and internal controls,
and conduct self-assessment
of internal controls

Corporate Governance Appendices
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Internal Audit Service

» Monitors the RM&ICS reliability
and performance

» Conducts audits and takes other
internal audit actions

» Monitors the implementation
of RM&ICS improvement proposals
made by internal auditors

» Assists the Company's executive
bodies in investigating
abusive/unlawful practices
by the Company's employees and
third parties

Audit Commission

» Audits the Company's financial
and business operations, verifies
the accuracy and reliability
of data included in Rosneft's
Annual Report and annuall
accounting (financial) statements
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RM&ICS enhancement

Owing to ongoing improvements in its RM&ICS, the Company

can promptly respond to changes in the external
environment and internal business processes, achieve
better performance, and increase its shareholder value.

RM&ICS enhancement highlights for 2024

RME&ICS enhancement initiatives

Results

Development and improvement
of guidelines on RM&ICS

>

Development of a framework to assess
the competencies of risk and internal control
experts at Rosneft and Group Subsidiaries

Development and implementation

> ! i
of an RM&ICS training programme The Compqny s employees and risk
and internal control experts at Rosneft
for the employees of Rosneft and e .
S and Group Subsidiaries underwent training
Group Subsidiaries
, » Current assessment of Rosneft's RM&ICS
Development of the Company's . ;
) : effectiveness in 2023 was performed.
risk management and internal . .
. » Assessment of the project risk management
control infrastructure and . o
rocedures maturity level at a Group Subsidiary
P was carried out
» The following activities were implemented:
) - Quantitative key risk assessment models
Enhancement of the risk .
) were verified (back-tested) (on an annual
assessment framework leveraging basis)
economic and mathematical . ,
; - Portfolio assessment of the Company's
models and expert reviews } .
exposure to market risks was carried out
(on a monthly basis)
» Self-assessment of the Company's internal
. o control was carried out.
Implementing and maintaining » A plan for developing, implementing and
the Internal Control System plan tof ping, imp d
maintaining the Internal Control System
was approved by the top manager in charge
» The Corporate-Wide Risk Management

Improving the RM&ICS processes
across Group Subsidiaries

system was implemented at Commerce and
Logistics of a Group Subsidiary
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Key targets

and objectives

of the RM&ICS
enhancement,

as well as critical steps
to achieve them, are set
out in the RM&ICS
Enhancement Plan

for the current and
two subsequent

years. The RM&ICS
Enhancement Plan

is agreed upon

by the Company’s
CEO and approved

by the Board

of Directors.
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Internal Control System

The ICS is an integral part of the RM&ICS.

» Both systems have aligned goals.

» The ICSis governed by the Company's Policy on the Risk Management and Internal Control System, Standard
on Risk Management and Internal Controls, Business Process Regulations, and Standard Requirements
for Design, Implementation and Maintenance of the Internal Control System.

» The Company relies on the above internal documents to identify risks inherent in its business processes and
develop and implement controls, thus improving manageability and efficiency across business processes,
reliability of financial statements, and compliance with the applicable laws and internal regulations.

www.rosneft.com

To achieve the ICS objectives,
the Company needs to:

Corporate Governance Appendices

Define and update key ICS
focus areas in alignment with
the Company's needs and
stakeholder requirements

Idenfity shortcomings

in existing controls, develop
and implement initiatives
to address the same;
streamline and upgrade
controls

Assess business process risks,
develop, adopt and follow controls,
including the development of uniform
guidelines to support efficient ICS
operations

Develop and implement tools
to facilitate communication
and information sharing among
all RM&ICS stakeholders,
including via information
systems

The Company's management and employees ensure the ICS efficiency by managing
the relevant functions and performing their job duties.
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Standard on the Corporate-Wide Risk Management System

I I Key CWRMS components

—

2 3

Risk management process

A combination of risk

management elements
— supported by the existing
organisational structure,
internal policies and
regulations, risk management
procedures and techniques
that are applied across all
management levels and
functions of the Company

infrastructure process

Risk monitoring

Risk management at Rosneft

is governed by the Company's Policy
on the Risk Management and Internal
Control System!, Standards on Risk
Management and Internal Controls?,
and on the Corporate-Wide Risk
Management System®.

The CWRMS is a combination

of interrelated elements embedded
into various business processes

of the Company (including

strategic and business planning
processes) and implemented at alll
management levels by all employees
of the Company.

Annual Risk Risk
planning identification assessment
I L LI | LI | 1
Ongoing Regulations Interfaces between  Distribution of roles
enhancement the CWRMS within the CWRMS
of the CWRMS and other processes

5 4

Responding
Reporting to risks

As part of the CWRMS, our
management (at various
organisational levels, including Group
Subsidiaries and the Company)
regularly identifies and assesses risks
and develops response measures
covering, among others, risks that
affect the Company'’s long-term goals
(strategic risks) along with financial
and operational risks. Risk reporting
includes all necessary information

on risks, including their assessment,

description of measures aimed at their

mitigation, and is communicated

to Rosneft's Board of Directors, Audit
Committee, management, and
employees of the Company.

to make its risks acceptable
in the context of achieving
Rosneft's strategic goals

Risk management
infrastructure

P A set of elements that provide
a Company-wide basis,
tools, and framework for risk
management

The Company’'s management arranges
for and steers risk management
processes within its remit, and seeks

to find an optimal balance and
maintain an acceptable risk level

(risk appetite) when choosing a risk
response and specific mitigants.

T Rosneft's Policy on the Risk Management and Internal Control System No. P4-05 P-01 approved by Resolution of the Company'’s Board of Directors

(Minutes No. 15 dated 13 December 2021).

2 Rosneft's Standard on Risk Management and Internal Controls No. P4-05 S-0028 approved by Resolution of the Company’s Management Board

(No. Pr-IS-09p dated 31 March 2022).

3 Rosneft's Standard on the Corporate-Wide Risk Management System No. P4-05 S-0012 approved by Resolution of the Company’'s Management
Board (No. Pr-1S-36p dated 28 September 2018).
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Rosneft's risks

O

Industry-wide
risks

» Risk of accidents

» Risk of environmental
damages resulting from
environmental accidents

» Risk of fatal injuries

» Risk of failure to achieve
oil and gas condensate
production targets

» Risk of failure to achieve
natural gas and gas
condensate production
targets

» Risk of lower quality of refinery
feedstock

» Risk of failure to comply
with the repair plan in oil
refining and petrochemicals

» Risk of failure to achieve
planned volumes of bulk
wholesale of crude all,
petroleum products, gas
processing products, and
petrochemicals

» Risk of penalties for the quality
of gas fed into transportation
systems

» Risk of failure to achieve
natural gas price targets

» Risk related to rising purchase
prices for electric power

» Risk of accumulation
of unclaimed liquid and non-
liquid inventories

www.rosneft.com
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O

Financial
risks

» Market risks

» Risk of anincrease
in overdue
receivables

» Risk of default/
cross-default

=

Legal
risks

> Litigation risk
» Risk of breach
of competition laws

Corporate Governance Appendices

Risk appetite
of the Company

The following risk appetite
indicators were approved
for 2024:

Financial and economic
performance

The Company strictly complies with
its financial covenants. The Company
ensures that all its short- and long-
term commitments are fulfilled as they
fall due.

Health, safety and environment
Recognising the nature and scale

of the footprint of its business,
products and services, the Company
feels responsible for safe

and accident-free operation

and protects health and safety

of its employees and local residents
in regions of its operation.

As part of its commitment to prevent
any potential adverse impact

on the environment, the Company
makes every effort to protect,
preserve and restore natural
resources.

Corporate governance

The Company has zero tolerance
for any form or manifestation

of corporate fraud and corruption.
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ESG risks and climate risks

Rosneft is fully aware

of the importance and impact

of sustainability risks, including ESG,
on the Company's business.

We analyse sustainability risks as part
of the effort to identify and assess risks
that can affect the Company'’s long-
term goals (strategic risks and threats).
The annual process to identify and
assess (prioritise) strategic risks and
threats takes into account Russian
and international research on the oil
and gas industry development, and

is based on the recommendations

of TCFD, as well as the Company's
strategic targets as set out

in its development strategy. Following
this analysis, we determine a list

52

of strategic threats that can potentially
impact the Company’s ability

to achieve its strategic goals. This list
also includes threats related to various
aspects of sustainable development.

Rosneft's management evaluates
the impact of strategic threats
(including those related to sustainable
development) on the Company's
strategic targets using expert
analysis and statistical approaches.
The assessment horizon and

the metrics used depend

on the way specific targets are set
out in the Company's strategy.

The results are then consolidated
using the probability theory

and mathematical statistics methods

to identify the key strategic threats,
assess strategic risks, and develop
measures to mitigate them.

Annual Report 2024

ESG risks

Environmental

» Accidents and

environmental domage

» Advance of alternative

technologies (energy,
‘green technologies”,
etc.), and improvements
in energy efficiency

» Changes in the structure

of energy consumption
and consumer preferences

» Natural disasters
» Climate change

in the regions where
the Company operates
Deteriorating condition
of the environment

» Stricter regulation and

requirements related
to climate change. New
climate initiatives

About the Company

Corporate Governance

‘Q\ .
Q400 Social

» Epidemics and diseases

» HR and social risks

» Armed conflicts, terrorism, civil
disturbance

» Safety of critical facilities

@] Governance

» Cyber security

» Reputation and less appealing
investment case’

Climate risks

' Included in Climate risks as regards counterparties’ perception changing to negative as a result of the Company'’s
failure to meet its obligations as part of the strategy to reduce GHG emissions, to achieve climate goals,

or insufficient commitment to low-carbon transition, etc

www.rosneft.com
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INTERNAL AUDIT

In 2024, Rosneft's Internal Audit Service was governed
by the Company’s Policy on Internal Audit, Code of Ethics
of the International Institute of Internal Auditors,

and International Professional Practices Framework

The Internal Audit Service assists
Rosneft's Board of Directors and

the executive bodies of Rosneft and
Group Subsidiaries in enhancing

the Company's management
efficiency and improving its financial
and business performance,
including through a systematic and
consistent approach to the analysis
and evaluation of the RM&ICS

as well as corporate governance,
therefore providing reasonable
assurance that the Company will
achieve its goals. It also helps ensure:

>

accuracy, reliability, and integrity
of information on the Company'’s
financial and business operations,
including those of Group
Subsidiaries;

efficiency and effectiveness

of the Company's operations,
including those of Group
Subsidiaries;

room for improvement available
across the Company's financial and
business operations, including those
of Group Subsidiaries;

integrity of the Company’s

assets, including those of Group
Subsidiaries.

Rosneft's Internal Audit Service
is mainly responsible for:

>

developing an internal audit
plan based on the risk-oriented
approach;

assessing the RM&ICS

reliability and performance

as well as its adequacy given
the scale and complexity

of the Company's business;
assessing corporate governance;
conducting audits and activities
in line with the internal audit plan
approved by Rosneft's Chief
Executive Officer and endorsed
by the Board's Audit Committee;
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» performing other inspections
and tasks in line with instructions
of Rosneft's Board of Directors
(recommendations of its Audit
Committee) and/or the Company's
Chief Executive Officer;

» monitoring the Company's progress
in addressing breaches and
shortcomings identified during
internal audits;

» performing other functions essential
to meet the tasks assigned.

The existing reporting lines

whereby the Head of Internal Audit
reports to the Board of Directors

and the Company's executive bodies
provide sufficient independence

for performing internal audit functions.

The Head of Internal Audit provides
Rosneft’'s Chief Executive Officer,
Board of Directors (its Audit
Committee) with confirmation

of the organisational independence
of the Internal Audit Service and
individual impartiality of internal
auditors at least once a year, as part
of the internal audit performance
report.

1 N

Functionally and
administratively,

the Internal Audit Service
reports to Rosneft's
Board of Directors and
Chief Executive Officer
respectively.

Rosneft's internal audit
function is performed

by the Vice President -
Head of the Internal Audit
Service (Head of Internal
Audit) and functional
units of the Internal Audit
Service. In accordance
with Rosneft's
organisational structure,
units of the Internal Audit
Service report directly

to the Head of Internal
Audit.

Annual Report 2024
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Internal Audit Quality Assurance and
Improvement Programme

Corporate Governance Appendices

In order to ensure proper quality control and performance evaluation

of internal audit, the Internal Audit Quality Assurance and
Improvement Programme was developed and put in place.

To deliver against the Programme'’s
targets and improve the quality

of internal audit, a regular in-house
self-assessment of the internal audit
quality was conducted in 2024,

It was concluded following the self-
assessment that the internal

audit function was generally

in line with the requirements

of the Company's Policy on Internal
Audit and other regulations on internall
audit, the International Standards

for the Professional Practice of Internal
Auditing, and the Code of Ethics

of the International Institute of Internall
Auditors.

In 2024, the risk-oriented internal audit
plan was implemented in full.

www.rosneft.com

The Head of the Internal Audit
Service prepared a report

on the internal audit performance
for 2024 and submitted

it to Rosneft's Board of Directors
and its executive bodies.

Pursuant to Federal Law on Joint-
Stock Companies No. 208-FZ

dated 26 December 1995, following
the business process efficiency
audits and other internal audit
actions in 2024, an Internal Audit
opinion on the RM&ICS reliability and
effectiveness was prepared.

th N

Following

the 2024 reliability

and effectiveness
assessment of RM&ICS,
the Internal Audit
Service concluded that
the RM&ICS ensured
overall support of the risk
management process
and efficient internal
control system, providing
reasonable assurance
that the Company would
achieve its goals.

BILTCH2
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SHAREHOLDER RELATIONS,
KEY EVENTS IN 2024

The Company has established a multi-level system to
protect the rights of its shareholders.

Shareholder rights guaranteed by law

Pursuant to the Russian laws, the
Company's shareholders have the
right to:

» vote at the General Shareholders
Meeting on a one-share-one-vote
basis;

» propose items for the agenda
of the General Shareholders
Meeting and nominate candidates

to the Board of Directors (if

a shareholder owns at least 2%

of voting shares);

exercise pre-emptive right to buy
shares in any future issue and issue-
grade securities convertible into
shares;

receive dividends declared by the
Company, in proportion to the
number of shares held;

» review information and materials

provided in preparation for the
General Shareholders Meeting;

» obtain information on the

Company's operations upon
request and as established by the
Russian laws;

» freely dispose of Rosneft's shares;
» exercise other rights granted under

the Russian law.

For shareholders to exercise their rights, the Company has
I I created additional conditions and opportunities:

Rosneft's Charter

sets forth a term

for shareholders to claim
their unpaid dividends
extended to five years
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Rosneft's Charter sets forth
a term for shareholders

to submit items

for the General Shareholders
Meeting agenda and
proposals on candidates

to the Board of Directors and
Audit Commission extended
to 60 days

The Company uses
telecommunication channels
for shareholders to take part
in General Shareholders
Meetings remotely, and also
provides for other accessible
channels of communication
with the Company (Hotline

or email consultations, etc.)
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Official channels of communication with shareholders

The Company has established efficient means of communicating with its shareholders.

The Company has several communication channels in place to facilitate the exercise
I I I of corporate rights and promote efficient shareholder relations, including:

» Shareholder's Personal Account
on the Company's website;

» 24 hour shareholder Hotline

(a multichannel phone line
to receive and handle calls):

» email for requests:
shareholders@rosneft.ry;

» mailing address for letters:
26/1 Sofiyskaya Embankment,
Moscow, 117997, Russia;

8 (800) 500-11-00 (toll-free within

Russia) and +7 (495) 987-30-60;

Shareholder's Personal Account

Shareholder's Personal Account
enables all Rosneft shareholders,
regardless of where their shares are
kept, to take part in the General
Shareholders Meeting online: register,
vote on the agenda items, review
information for the meeting, and put
their questions to the speakers.

All Rosneft shareholders of record also

can:

» receive updates on their accounts in
the register of shareholders online;

» use the registrar's services remotely
(request and receive certificates,
extracts, and notices) and pay for
them online;

» monitor accrued dividends;

» request and receive 2-NDFL
earnings certificates in a convenient
way;

» exercise their rights in relation to
several Shareholder’s Personal
Accounts within one session (one
account).

www.rosneft.com

Shareholders can log into their
personal accounts at: https://lka.
rosneft.ru/auth/?authLg=en.

To gain access to their Shareholder's
Personal Account, shareholders need
to request login and password from
the Moscow Head Office or regional
branches of the Company's registrar,
Reestr-RN LLC.

The rules governing the procedure

of registering a personal account

can be found on the website

of Reestr-RN LLC or on the Company’s

website. Any questions concerning

access to the Shareholder's Personal

Account can be addressed to:

» Reestr-RN LLC call centre by phone:
+7 495 411-79-11 (email: support@
reestrrn.ru);

» Hotline for Rosneft shareholders at:
8-800-500-11-00 (toll-free within
Russia) and +7 495 987-30-60 (emaiil:
shareholders@rosneft.ru).

> fax: +7 (499) 517-86-53.

In 2024, the Corporate Governance

Department handled 4,729 requests,

including:

» 3,823 phone calls;

> 383 letters;

» 125 emails;

» 398 requests claiming unpaid
dividends for prior periods.

Answers to frequently asked questions

can be found on the Company'’s
website.
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PROTECTING SHAREHOLDERS?
TITLETO SHARES

The Company practises reliable and safe methods of recording title to its shares
and has engaged a professional registrar to maintain its Shareholder Register.

The registrar, Reestr-RN LLC, registers
holders of securities in Rosneft, more
than 130 issuers within the Group,
and over 1.3 thousand joint-stock
companies from various industries.

and 44 transfer agent offices,
which operate in the regions where
the majority of the Company

shareholders reside. I I

The Company, together with
Reestr-RN LLC, regularly notifies
its shareholders of the need

to update their personal data

Reestr-RN LLC has been operating
in the registrar services market
for over 20 years and consistently

N\

ranks among the top ten Russian
registrars, records rights to shares
of more than half a million security

recorded in the Shareholders Register |
of Rosneft.

Resolutions of the General

holders, actively develops digital

Shareholders Meeting

customer services, and maintains
a network of 13 branches

Regulation on Provision

of Information
to Rosneft
Shareholders

Contact details
of the registrar

and its service offices
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CORPORATE SECRETARY

The Corporate Secretary of Rosneft oversees the Company’s compliance
with the requirements of the Russian laws, as well as Rosneft's

Charter and internal regulations ensuring execution of the rights

and legal interests of the Company’s shareholders and successful
interaction with shareholders, supports the Board of Directors’
performance, and refines corporate governance practices

in line with shareholders' and other stakeholders’ interests.

The Corporate Secretary reports
to the Board of Directors and
is appointed and dismissed

As part of their function to ensure
Rosneft's shareholder relations

and prevent corporate conflicts,

by the Chief Executive Officer the Corporate Secretary coordinates
on the basis of the Board of Directors’ activities to implement procedures
resolution. required under the laws of Russia
and Rosneft's internal regulations them.

The Corporate Secretary acts

as the Board of Directors secretary
and the General Shareholders
Meeting secretary.

e
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www.rosneft.com
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with a view to executing the rights
and legal interests of shareholders
and controlling the same,

as well as overseeing the execution
of rights and property interests

of shareholders in decision-making
by Rosneft's governing bodies.

The Corporate Secretary engages
in actions required to prevent abuse
of rights by all the parties involved
in corporate relations, identifies
potential corporate conflicts early on,
and steps in to prevent and resolve

‘?TI
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Dividend Policy approved by the Board of Directors formalises the Company's
key principles of, and approaches to, dividend payouts to shareholders and
introduces transparent decision-making processes for paying out (declaring)

dividends and determining their amount and payment procedure.
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III Principles of the Dividend Policy:

ensuring compliance with the requirements
of the Russian laws, the Company's Charter and internal
regulations when paying out (declaring) dividends;

maximising the transparency of the dividend

calculation process;

increasing the Company's
investment appeal;

maintaining the balance of short- and long-

term interests of shareholders;

supporting shareholder commitment

to improving the Company's profitability;

ensuring that the dividend payout

pattern comfortably reflects an increase

in Rosneft's net profit;

making dividend payments in a way most

convenient for our shareholders;

paying out dividends as soon as practicable.

Il A

In 2024, the Company
made no changes

to its Dividend Policy.

The decision to pay
dividends is made

by the General
Shareholders Meeting
upon recommendation
of the Board

of Directors.

+033.4..

paid by the Company as
dividend in 2024 for 9M 2023
and FY2023
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I I Rosneft's dividend history
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RUB bIn

20M 2012 2013 2014

7.53 8.05 12.85 8.21

= Dividend payout ratio
under IFRS, %

Annual dividends, RUB bIn
Interim dividends, RUB bin

In 2024, the Company discharged
99.98% of its obligation to pay out
dividends. Dividends were paid

to all shareholders of record, except
for persons who failed to timely notify
the issuer's registrar of changes

in the data recorded on their profile.

The Company's Charter provides

for a five-year period when
shareholders may claim dividends
declared but not paid due to missing
address or banking details,

which is longer than required

by the applicable laws.
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40
30
20

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

11.75 598 1048 2591 3341 6.94

2021 2022 2023 2024

41.66 38.36 59.78 51.15

Interim dividends per share, RUB
Annual dividends per share, RUB
7.53 - dividends per share for the period, RUB

In 2024, the Extraordinary General
Shareholders Meeting resolved

to pay interim dividends. A total

of RUB 386.5 bln was allocated

by Rosneft to paying its interim
dividends for the first six months

of 2024, which represents 50%

of the Company'’s IFRS net income
attributable to Rosneft shareholders.

The interim dividends were not due as
at 31 December 2024. On 25 April 2025,
the Board of Directors recommended
that the General Shareholders
Meeting approve RUB 14.68 per share
as dividend for FY2024.

T Including the interim dividends and the dividends recommended by the Board of Directors
to be approved at the Annual General Shareholders Meeting in 2025.

www.rosneft.com

The total amount of dividends
recommended for FY2024, including
the interim dividends paid in 2025, is
RUB 542.1 bln or RUB 51.15 per share.
The dividend payout ratio calculated
as dividends divided by non-
consolidated net income under RAS
for 2024 is 99.997%, while the dividend
payout ratio calculated as dividends
divided by consolidated net income
under IFRS is 50% of the Company's
IFRS net income attributable to
Rosneft shareholders.
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SUMMARY CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS ROSNEFT OIL COMPANY
FORTHE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2024
WITH INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Independent auditor’s report

To the Shareholders and Board of Directors of PJSC Rosneft Oil Company

Opinion

The accompanying summary
consolidated financial statements,
which comprise the summary
consolidated balance sheet as at 31
December 2024, the summary
consolidated statement of profit or loss
and summary consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended,
and related notes are derived from
the audited consolidated financial
statements of PJSC Rosneft Oil
Company and its subsidiaries
(hereinafter collectively referred

to as the "Company”) for the year
ended 31 December 2024 prepared

in accordance with IFRS Accounting
Standards (the “audited consolidated
financial statements”).

In our opinion, the accompanying
summary consolidated financial
statements are consistent, in all
material respects, with the audited
consolidated financial statements,
in accordance with the principles
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specified in Note 1 "Basis
of preparation of the summary
consolidated financial statements”.

Summary consolidated
financial statements

The summary consolidated
financial statements do not
contain all the disclosures
required by IFRS Accounting
Standards. Reading the summary
consolidated financial
statements and the auditor's
report thereon, therefore,

is not a substitute for reading
the audited consolidated
financial statements and

the auditor's report thereon.

Audited consolidated
financial statements
and our auditor’s
report thereon

We expressed an unmodified

audit opinion on the audited

consolidated financial

statements in our report dated

20 March 2025. That report also

includes:

» Other Matter paragraph that refers
to the Other information, that
is not required by IFRS accounting
standards;

» The communication of key audit
matters. Key audit matters are those
matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the financial
statements of the current period.

Annual Report 2024

Management's
responsibility

for the summary
consolidated financial
statements

Management is responsible

for the preparation of the summary
consolidated financial statements
in accordance with the principles
specified in Note 1"Basis

of preparation of the summary
consolidated financial statements”.

About the Company Corporate Governance

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on whether the summary consolidated
financial statements are consistent,

in all material respects, with the audited
consolidated financial statements
based on our procedures, which

are conducted in accordance with
International Standard on Auditing (ISA)
810 (Revised) Engagements to Report
on Summary Financial Statements.

Starygina Natalia Gennadievna,

Appendices

acting on behalf of TSATR — Audit Services Limited Liability Company on the basis of power of attorney w/o number
dated 19 February 2025, partner in charge of the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report (main registration

number 21906108494)
20 March 2025

Details of the auditor

Name: TSATR — Audit Services Limited Liability Company

Record made in the State Register of Legal Entities on 5 December 2002, State Registration Number 1027739707203.

Address: Russia 115035, Moscow, Sadovnicheskaya naberezhnaya, 75.

TSATR — Audit Services Limited Liability Company is a member of Self-regulatory organization of auditors Association
"Sodruzhestvo”. TSATR — Audit Services Limited Liability Company is included in the control copy of the register
of auditors and audit organizations, main registration number 12006020327.

Details of the audited entity
Name: PJSC Rosneft Oil Company

Record made in the State Register of Legal Entities on 12 August 2002, State Registration Number 1027700043502.

Address: Russia 115035, Moscow, Sofiyskaya embankment, 26/1.

www.rosneft.com
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Summary consolidated balance sheet

(in billions of Russian rubles)

Notes For the year ended For the year ended
Notes December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
ASSETS Operating profit 2,129 2,182
Current assets 4,283 3,839 Other expenses (236) (225)
Non-current assets Profit before income tax 1,893 1957
Property, plant and equipment 5 13,936 12,639 Income tax expense (552) (428)
Other non-current assets 2,463 2,309 Profit for the year 1.341 1529
Total non-current assets 16,399 14,948 Profit for the year attributable to Rosneft shareholders 1,084 1,267
Total assets 20,682 18,787
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY The accompanying notes to the summary consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
Current liabilities 5,984 4,832
Non-current liabilities 5,541 5,541
Equity °
: Summary consolidated statement of cash flows
Share capital 1 | (in billions of Russian rubles)
Retained earnings 6 6,347 5,885
Other funds and reserves 2,809 2,528
Notes For the year ended For the year ended
Total equity 9,157 8,414 December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Total liabilities and equity 20,682 18,787 Operating activities
Profit for the year 1,341 1,529
The accompanying notes to the summary consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these statements. Adjustments to reconcile profit for the year to net cash provided
by operating activities e 1.236
. Net cash provided by operating activities 2,465 2,765
Summary consolidated statement of profit or loss R
o . nvesting activities
(in billions of Russian rubles)
Capital expenditures (1,442) (1,297)
Notes For the year ended For the year ended Other proceeds from investing activities 3 104
December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023 Net cash used in investing activities (1,429) (1193)
Revenues and equity share in profits of associates and joint Financing activities
ventures
B B Proceeds from loans and borrowings 1,688 873
Qil, gas, petroleum products and petrochemicals sales 9972 8,990
) ) ) Repayment of loans and borrowings (980) (1,439)
Support services, other revenues, equity share in profit 167 173
of associates and joint ventures Other financing repayment (1,414) (971)
Total revenues and equity share in profits of associates and joint 10139 9163 Net cash used in financing activities (706) (1,537)
ventures Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 330 35
Costs and expenses
Production and operating expenses 895 675
Depreciation, depletion, amortization and impairment 848 769 The accompanying notes to the summary consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
Taxes other than income tax 3,639 3,156
Other costs and expenses 2,628 2,381
Total costs and expenses 8,010 6,981
64 Annual Report 2024 www.rosneft.com 65
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Notes to the summary consolidated financial statements

December 31, 2024

(all amounts in tables are in billions of Russian rubles, except as noted otherwise)

1. Basis of preparation

These summary consolidated financial
statements were derived from
consolidated financial statements
of the Company for the year ended
December 31, 2024, which were
prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting
Standards. The summary financial
statements were prepared

with a purpose of presentation

of consolidated financial position
and consolidated financial results
of the Company without causing
damage to the Company and (or)
its partners.

These summary consolidated financial

statements consist of:

» Summary consolidated balance
sheet as of December 31, 2024;

» Summary consolidated statement
of profit or loss for the year ended
December 31, 2024;

» Summary consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year ended
December 31, 2024;

» Notes to the summary consolidated
financial statements.

These summary consolidated
financial statements for the year
ended December 31, 2024,

contain information facilitating
comprehension of the Company's
activities by the users and do not
disclose all the information presented
in consolidated financial statements
of the Company for the year ended
December 31, 2024.

Decisions of the management

on preparation of the summary
consolidated financial statements
as well as on the range of sensitive
information were made with
consideration of the following
regulatory legal act # 903

On the temporary procedure
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for disclosing and providing
information by some Russian business
entities dated November 27, 2023.

Furthermore, the following
information was withdrawn from

the summary consolidated financial
statements: statement of other
comprehensive income, statement

of changes in equity, general
information about the Company,
information on capital and financial
risk management, acquisition

and disposals of subsidiaries and
joint arrangements, segment
information, personnel expenses,
non-controlling interest, earnings per
share, information about financial
instruments, taxes, export customs
duties, inventories, finance income and
expenses, cash and cash equivalents,
accounts receivable and payable,
information on funds in settlements
and sources of financing, on other
non-financial assets and liabilities,

on lease agreements, on intangible
assets and goodwill, on investments
in associates and joint ventures,
pension benefit obligations,

on related parties transactions, on key
subsidiaries, on commitments and
contingencies, as well as information
on supplementary oil and gas
disclosure (unaudited).

The basis of preparation and
disclosure of these summary
consolidated financial
statements are as follows:

These summary consolidated financial
statements are intended to summarize
and present aggregated information
of the consolidated balance sheet,
consolidated statement of profit

or loss, consolidated statement

of cash flows and do not include
information on other comprehensive
income and on changes in equity.

"Current assets” of the summary
consolidated balance sheet includes
cash and cash equivalents, restricted
cash, other short-term financial assets,
accounts receivable, bank loans
granted, inventories, value added tax,
excise and other taxes receivable,
prepayments and other current assets.

"Other non-current assets”

of the summary consolidated
balance sheet includes right-of-use
assets, intangible assets, other non-
current financial assets, investments
in associates and joint ventures, bank
loans granted, deferred tax assets,
goodwill and other non-current non-
financial assets.

“Current liabilities” of the summary
consolidated balance sheet includes
accounts payable and accrued
liabilities, loans and borrowings and
other financial liabilities, income tax
liabilities, other tax liabilities, current
provisions, prepayments on long-
term oil and petroleum products
supply agreements and other current
liabilities.

“Non-current liabilities”

of the summary consolidated balance
sheet includes loans and borrowings
and other financial liabilities, deferred
tax liabilities, non-current provisions,
prepayments on long-term oil

and petroleum products supply
agreements and other non-current
liabilities.

"Other funds and reserves”

of the summary consolidated balance
sheet includes treasury shares,
additional paid-in capital, reserve

for foreign exchange differences

on translation of foreign operations
and other funds and reserves.

"Other costs and expenses”
of the summary consolidated
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statement of profit or loss includes
the cost of purchased oil, gas,
petroleum products, goods

for retail and refining costs, general
and administrative expenses,
transportation costs and other
commercial expenses, exploration
expenses.

"Other expenses” of the summary
consolidated statement of profit

or loss includes finance income,
finance expenses, other income, other
expenses, and foreign exchange
differences.

"Other proceeds from investing
activities” of the summary
consolidated statement of cash flows
includes the acquisition of short-
term financial assets, proceeds from
the sale, payment and disposal

of short term financial assets,
acquisition of long term financial
assets, proceeds from the sale,
payment and disposal of long term
financial assets, proceeds from

the sale of subsidiaries, net of cash
disposed, proceeds from sale

of property, plant and equipment.

"Other financing repayment”

of the summary consolidated
statement of cash flows includes
repayment of other financial liabilities,
interest paid, other financing received,
dividends paid to shareholders

and non-controlling shareholders

of subsidiaries.

The summary consolidated
financial statements for the year
ended December 31, 2024 were
approved and authorized for issue
by management of the Company
on March 20, 2025.

2. Significant
accounting policies

The accompanying summary
consolidated financial statements
differ from the financial statements
issued for statutory purposes

in accordance with Russian

www.rosneft.com
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accounting principles in that they
reflect certain adjustments, not
recorded in the Company's statutory
books, which are appropriate

for presenting the financial position,
results of operations and cash flows
in accordance with IFRS financial
reporting standards. The principal
adjustments relate to: (1) recognition
of certain expenses; (2) valuation and
depreciation of property, plant and
equipment; (3) deferred income taxes;
(4) impairment of assets; (5) accounting
for the time value of money; (6)
accounting for investments in oil and
gas property and conveyances; (7)
consolidation principles; (8) recognition
and disclosure of guarantees,
contingencies, commitments and
certain other assets and liabilities; (9)
business combinations and goodwill;
(10) accounting for derivative financial
instruments; (11) purchase price
allocation to the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed.

The summary consolidated financial
statements include assets, liabilities,
equity, income, expenses and cash
flows of the parent and its subsidiaries
presented as those of a single
economic entity. All significant
intercompany transactions and
balances have been eliminated.

The equity method is used to account
for investments in associates

in which the Company has the ability
to exert significant influence over
the associates’ operating and
financial policies. Investments

in entities where the Company

holds the maijority of shares, but
control is exercised jointly with other
participants, are also accounted

for using the equity method.
Investments in other companies

are accounted for at fair value.
Determination of the level of control
or influence in the entities where

the Company holds a share is carried
out taking into account the powers
established by the agreement

in respect of the investment and

the existing rights that provide

the Company with the opportunity
to manage significant activities

at the present time.

Corporate Governance

Appendices

Business combinations and
goodwill

Business combinations are accounted
for using the acquisition method.

The date of acquisition is the date
when effective control over

the acquiree passes to the Company.

The cost of an acquisition

is measured as an aggregate

of the consideration transferred,
measured at acquisition date fair
value, and the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree.
For each business combination,
the Company elects whether

it measures the non-controlling
interest in the acquiree either at fair
value or at the proportionate share
of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. Acquisition costs incurred
are expensed and included

in administrative expenses.

Any contingent consideration

to be transferred by the acquirer

is recognized at fair value

at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value

of the contingent consideration which
is deemed to be an asset or a liability
should be treated as measurement-
period adjustments if they result

from additional information about
the facts and circumstances which
existed at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value
of the contingent consideration which
is deemed to be an asset or a liability
should be recognized within profit

or loss for the period if they result
from information about the facts and
circumstances that occurred after
the acquisition date. If the contingent
consideration is classified as equity,

it should not be re-measured.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost
being the excess of the aggregate

of the consideration transferred and
the amount recognized for non-
controlling interests over the fair value
of net identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. If the aggregate

of the consideration transferred

and the amount of non-controlling
interest is lower than the fair value
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of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired and liabilities assumed,
the difference is recognized in profit
or loss for the period.

From the date of initial recognition,
goodwill is measured at initial cost
less accumulated impairment losses.
For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business
combination shall, from the acquisition
date, be allocated to the Company's
cash-generating units, which

are expected to benefit from

the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other

assets or liabilities of the acquiree

are assigned to those units or groups
of units.

If the Company disposes of a part

of a cash generating unit, the goodwill
associated with the part disposed

of shall be included in the carrying
amount of this part when determining
the gain or loss on disposal;

the above mentioned part of goodwill
to be disposed of shall be measured
on the basis of the relative values

of the part disposed of and the total
value of the cash generating unit.

The Company reassesses whether

it controls the investees when facts
and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one of the three
elements of control.

Associates

Investments in associates

are accounted for using the equity
method unless they are classified

as non-current assets held for sale.
Under this method, the carrying value
of investments in associates is initially
recognized at the acquisition cost.

The carrying value of investments

in associates is increased

or decreased by the Company's
reported share in the profit

or loss and other comprehensive
income of the investee after

the acquisition date. The Company's
share in the profit or loss and

other comprehensive income
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of an associate is recognized

in the Company’s summary
consolidated statement of profit

or loss or in the summary consolidated
statement of comprehensive

income, respectively. Dividends paid
by the associate are accounted

for as a reduction of the carrying value
of investments.

The Company’s net investments

in associates include the carrying
value of the investments in these
associates as well as other long-term
investments that, in substance, form
part of the Company's net investments
in associates. For example, an item

for which settlement is neither planned
nor likely to occur in the foreseeable
future is, in substance, an extension

of the Company's investment in that
associate. Such items may include
preference shares and long-term
receivables or loans, but do not
include trade receivables, trade
payables or any long-term receivables
for which adequate collateral exists,
such as secured loans. If the share

in losses exceeds the carrying value

of the investments in associates

and the value of other long-term
investments related to investments

in these associates, the Company
ceases to recognize its share in losses
when the carrying value reaches zero.
Any additional losses are provided

for and liabilities are recognized only
to the extent that the Company has
legal or constructive obligations

or has made payments on behalf

of the associate. If the associate
subsequently makes profits,

the Company resumes recognizing

its share in these profits only after

its share of the profits equals the share
of losses not recognized

The carrying value of investments

in associates is tested for impairment
by reconciling its recoverable amount
(the higher of its value in use and fair
value less costs to sell) to its carrying
value, whenever impairment indicators
are identified.

Joint arrangements

The Company participates in joint
arrangements either in the form of joint
ventures or joint operations.

Ajoint venture implies that

the parties that have joint control

of the arrangement have rights

to the net assets of the arrangement.
A joint venture involves establishing

a legal entity where the Company and
other participants have respective
equity interests. Equity interests in joint
ventures are accounted for under

the equity method, as described
above in respect of associates.

The Company'’s share in net profit

or loss and in other comprehensive
income of joint ventures is recognized
in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income,
respectively, from the date when joint
control commences until the date
when joint control ceases. A joint
operation implies that the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the assets, and
obligations for the liabilities, relating
to the arrangement. In relation

to its interest in a joint operation

the Company recognizes its assets,
including its share of any assets held
jointly, its liabilities, including its share
of any liabilities incurred jointly,

its revenue from the sale of its share
of the output arising from the joint
operation, its share of the revenue
from the sale of the output by the joint
operation, and expenses, including

its share of any expenses incurred
jointly.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash represents cash on hand,

in the Company's bank accounts,

in transit and interest-bearing
deposits which can be effectively
withdrawn at any time without prior
notice or any penalties reducing
the principal amount of the deposit.
Cash equivalents are highly liquid,
short-term investments that are readily
convertible to known amounts

of cash and have original maturities
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of three months or less from their
date of purchase. They are carried
at cost plus accrued interest, which
approximates fair value. Restricted
cash is presented separately

in the consolidated balance sheet
if its amount is significant.

Financial assets

The Company recognizes financial
assets in its balance sheet when,

and only when, it becomes a party

to the contractual provisions

of the financial instrument. When
financial assets are recognized initially,
they are measured at fair value, which
is usually the price of the transaction,
i.e. the fair value of consideration paid.

When financial assets are recognized

initially, they are classified as one

of the following, as appropriate:

1. Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss;

2. Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income; or

3. Financial assets at amortised cost.

The Company classifies financial
assets on the basis of both

the Company'’s business model

for managing the financial assets,

as well as the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial assets.

A financial asset shall be measured
at fair value through profit or loss
unless it is measured at amortised
cost or at fair value through

other comprehensive income.
However, the Company may make
an irrevocable election at initial
recognition for particular instruments
in equity instruments that would
otherwise be measured at fair value
through profit or loss to present
subsequent changes in fair value

in other comprehensive income.

In particular, the Company classifies
shares of other companies, which
are not included in the category

of measured at fair value through
profit or loss, as financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive
income.

www.rosneft.com

About the Company

All derivative instruments are recorded
in the consolidated balance sheet

at fair value in either current financial
assets, non-current financial assets,
current liabilities related to derivative
instruments, or non-current liabilities
related to derivative instruments.

The recognition and classification

of a gain or loss that results from
recognition of an adjustment

of a derivative instrument at fair

value depends on the purpose

for issuing or holding the derivative
instrument. Gains and losses from
derivatives that are not accounted

for as hedges under International
Financial Reporting Standard (“IFRS") 9
Financial Instruments are recognized
immediately in the profit or loss

for the period.

Fair value is the price that would

be received to sell an asset or paid

to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market
participants at the measurement
date. Subsequent to initial recognition,
the fair value of financial assets at fair
value that are quoted in an active
market is defined as bid prices

for assets and ask prices for issued
liabilities as of the measurement date.

If no active market exists for financial

assets, the Company measures

the fair value using the following

methods:

» Analysis of recent transactions
with peer instruments between
independent parties;

» Current fair value of similar financial
instruments;

» Discounting future cash flows.

The discount rate reflects the minimum
return on investment an investor

is willing to accept before starting

an alternative project, given its risk
and the opportunity cost of forgoing
other projects.

A financial asset shall be measured
at amortised cost if both
of the following conditions are met:
a. The financial asset is held within
a business model whose objective
is to hold financial assets in order
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to collect contractual cash flows;
and

b. The contractual terms
of the financial asset give rise
on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest
on the principal amount
outstanding.

Examples of financial assets that may
fall into this category are loans given,
accounts receivable, bonds and notes
issued by 3rd parties, which are not
quoted at active market — if they fulfill
the requirements set above.

A financial asset shall be measured
at fair value through other
comprehensive income if both
of the following conditions are met:
a. The financial asset is held within
a business model whose objective
is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets; and
b. The contractual terms
of the financial asset give rise
on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest
on the principal amount
outstanding.

Dividends and interest income

are recognized in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss

on an accrual basis. The amount
of accrued interest income

is calculated using the effective
interest rate.

Upon de-recognition of debt financial
assets (bonds, notes etc.) classified

as financial instruments at fair value
through other comprehensive income,
cumulative gains or losses previously
recognized in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss
for the period.

In case of equity financial assets
(shares, stocks etc.), classified

as financial instruments at fair value
through other comprehensive income,
such cumulative gain or loss shall
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never be subsequently transferred
to profit or loss for the period.

Interest income as a component

of finance income is disclosed

in the notes to financial statements
separately for each category

of financial assets.

Regular way purchases and sales
of financial assets are accounted
for at trade date.

Financial liabilities

The Company recognizes financial
liabilities on its balance sheet
when, and only when, it becomes
a party to the contractual provisions
of the financial instrument. When
financial liabilities are recognized
initially, they are measured at fair
value, which is usually the price

of the transaction, i.e. the fair value
of consideration received.

When financial liabilities

are recognized initially, they

are classified as one of the following:

» Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss;

» Other financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are financial liabilities
held for trading or financial liabilities
designated at this category upon
initial recognition.

The Company may, at initial
recognition, irrevocably designate

a financial liability as measured at fair
value through profit or loss when
permitted by IFRS standards and
when doing so results in more relevant
information.

Financial liabilities not classified

as financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are designated
as other financial liabilities. Other
financial liabilities include, inter alia,
trade and other accounts payable,
and loans and borrowings payable.

Subsequent to initial recognition,
financial liabilities at fair value
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through profit or loss are measured
at fair value, with changes in fair
value recognized in profit or loss

in the summary consolidated
statement of profit or loss. Other
financial liabilities are carried

at amortized cost.

The Company removes a financial
liability (or part of a financial liability)
from its statement of financial
position when, and only when,

it is extinguished — i.e. when

the obligation specified in the contract
is discharged, cancelled or expires.
The difference between the carrying
value of a financial liability (or a part
of a financial liability) extinguished

or transferred to another party and
the redemption value, including

any transferred non-monetary assets
and assumed liabilities, is recognized
in profit or loss.

Cash flows from the operating
activities of subsidiary banks

are included within operating activities
of the Consolidated Statement

of Cash Flows. Operating liabilities

of subsidiary banks, including
interbank loans, customer deposits,
promissory notes and repo obligations,
are included within Accounts payable
and accrued liabilities.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated
by dividing profit for the period
attributable to common shares

by the weighted average number

of common shares outstanding
during the corresponding period.

In the absence of any securities-
to-shares conversion transactions,
the amount of basic earnings per
share stated in these consolidated
financial statements is equal

to the amount of diluted earnings per
share.

Treasury shares

Treasury shares are outstanding
Treasury shares purchased from
the shareholders. Treasury shares
are presented in the consolidated

balance sheet as a deduction from
equity at cost of repurchase.

Inventories

Inventories consisting primarily

of crude oil, petroleum products,
petrochemicals and materials

and supplies are accounted

for at the weighted average cost
by subsidiaries unless net realizable
value is less than cost. Materials
that are used in production are not
written down below cost if the finished
products into which they will

be incorporated are expected

to be sold above cost.

Repurchase and resale
agreements

Securities sold under repurchase
agreements (“repo”) and securities
purchased under agreements to resell
("reverse repo”) generally do not
constitute a sale of the underlying
securities for accounting purposes,
and so are treated as collateralized
financing transactions. Interest paid
or received on all repo and reverse
repo transactions is recognized

in Finance expense or Finance income,
respectively, and calculated using

the effective interest method.

Exploration and production
assets

Exploration and production assets
include exploration and evaluation
assets, mineral rights and oil and gas
properties (development assets and
production assets).

Exploration and evaluation
costs

The Company recognizes
exploration and evaluation costs
using the successful efforts method
as permitted by IFRS 6 Exploration
for and Evaluation of Mineral
Resources. Under this method, costs
related to exploration and evaluation
(license acquisition costs, exploration
and appraisal drilling) are temporarily
capitalized in cost centers by field
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(well) until the drilling program results
in the discovery of economically
feasible oil and gas reserves.

The length of time necessary for this
determination depends on the specific
technical or economic difficulties

in assessing the recoverability of the
reserves. If a determination is made
that the well did not encounter oil

and gas in economically viable
quantities, the well costs are expensed
to Exploration expenses in the
consolidated statement of profit

or loss.

Exploration and evaluation costs,
except for costs associated

with 2D-seismic, topographical,
geological, and geophysical
surveys, are initially capitalized

as exploration and evaluation
assets. Exploration and evaluation
assets are recognized at cost less
impairment, if any, as property, plant
and equipment until the existence
(or absence) of commercial reserves
has been established. The initial
cost of exploration and evaluation
assets acquired through a business
combination is formed as a result

of purchase price allocation.

The cost allocation to mineral rights
for proved properties and mineral
rights for unproved properties

is performed based on the respective
oil and gas reserves information.
Exploration and evaluation

assets are subject to technical,
commercial and management
review as well as review for indicators
of impairment at least once a year.
This is to confirm the continued intent
to develop or otherwise extract
value from the discovery. When
indicators of impairment are present,
an impairment test is performed.

If, subsequently, commercial
reserves are discovered, the carrying
value, less losses from impairment

of the respective exploration and
evaluation assets, is classified as oil
and gas properties (development
assets). However, if no commercial
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reserves are discovered, such costs
are expensed after exploration and
evaluation activities have been
completed.

Development and production
Oil and gas properties (development
assets) are accounted for on a field-
by-field basis and represent (1)
capitalized costs to develop
discovered commercial reserves and
to put fields into production, and (2)
exploration and evaluation costs
incurred to discover commercial
reserves reclassified from exploration
and evaluation assets to oil and gas
properties (development assets)
following the discovery of commercial
reserves.

The cost of oil and gas properties
(development assets) also includes
the expenditures to acquire such
assets, directly identifiable overhead
expenses, capitalized financing
costs and related asset retirement
(decommissioning) obligation costs.
Oil and gas properties (development
assets) are generally recognized

as construction in progress.

Following the commencement

of commercial production, oil and
gas properties (development assets)
are reclassified as oil and gas
properties (production assets).

Other property, plant and
equipment
Other property, plant and

equipment is stated at historical cost

as of the acquisition date, except
for property, plant and equipment
acquired prior to January 1, 2009,
which is stated at deemed cost,
net of accumulated depreciation
and impairment. The cost

of maintenance, repairs, and

the replacement of minor items

of property is charged to operating

expenses. Renewals and betterments

of assets are capitalized.
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Upon the sale or retirement

of property, plant and equipment,
the cost and related accumulated
depreciation are eliminated from

the accounts. Any resulting gains

or losses are included in profit or loss.

Depreciation, depletion and
amortization

Oil and gas properties are depleted
using the unit-of-production method
on a field-by-field basis starting from
the commencement of commercial
production.

In applying the unit-of-production
method to mineral licenses,

the depletion rate is based on total
proved reserves. In applying the unit-
of-production method to producing
wells and the related oil and gas
infrastructure, the depletion rate

is based on proved developed
reserves.

Other property, plant and equipment
are depreciated using the straight-
line method over their estimated useful
lives from the time they are ready

for use, except for catalysts which

are amortized using the unit-of-
production method.

Components of other property, plant

and equipment and their respective
estimated useful lives are as follows:
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Property, plant and equipment

Useful life, not more than

Buildings and structures 30-45 years
Plant and machinery 5-25years
Vehicles and other property, plant and equipment 6-10 years
Service vessels 20 years
Offshore drilling assets 20 years

Land generally has an indefinite useful
life and is therefore not depreciated.

Intangible assets (excl. goodwill)
Intangible assets with finite lives

are amortised over the useful
economic life and assessed

for impairment whenever there

is an indication that the intangible
asset may be impaired.

The amortisation period and

the amortisation method

for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least

at the end of each reporting

period. Changes in the expected
useful life or the expected pattern

of consumption of future economic
benefits embodied in the asset

are considered to modify

the amortisation period or method,
as appropriate, and are treated

as changes in accounting estimates.

Construction grants

The Company recognizes construction
grants from local governments

when there is a reasonable
assurance that the Company

will comply with the conditions
attached and that the grant will

be received. The construction grants
are accounted for as a reduction

of the cost of the asset for which

the grant is received.

Impairment of non-current
assets

The Company assesses at each
balance sheet date whether there
is any indication that an asset

or cash generating unit may

be impaired. If any such indication
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exists, the Company estimates
the recoverable amount of the asset
or cash-generating unit.

In assessing whether there

is any indication that an asset may
be impaired, the Company considers
internal and external sources

of information. It considers at least
the following:

External sources of information:

» During the period, an asset's market
value has declined significantly
more than would be expected
as a result of the passage of time
or normal use;

» Significant changes with an adverse
effect on the Company have
taken place during the period,
or will take place in the near future,
in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment
in which the Company operates
or in the market to which an asset
is dedicated;

» Market interest rates or other market
rates of return on investments have
increased during the period, and
those increases are likely to affect
the discount rate used in calculating
an asset’s value in use and decrease
the asset's recoverable amount
materially;

» The carrying amount of the net
assets of the Company is more than
its market capitalization.

Internal sources of information:

» Evidence is available
of obsolescence or physical
damage of an asset;

» Significant changes with an adverse
effect on the Company have
taken place during the period,
or are expected to take place

in the near future, in the extent
to which, or manner in which,
an asset is used or is expected
to be used (e.g., the asset becoming
idle, or the useful life of an asset
is reassessed as finite rather than
indefinite);

» Information on dividends from
a subsidiary, joint venture
or associate;

» Evidence is available from
internal reporting that indicates
that the economic performance
of an asset is, or will be, worse than
expected. Such evidence includes
the existence of:

— Cash flows on acquiring the asset,
or subsequent cash needs
for operating or maintaining it,
that are significantly higher than
those originally budgeted;

— Actual net cash flows or operating
profit or loss flowing from
the asset that are significantly
worse than those budgeted;

— Assignificant decline in budgeted
net cash flows or operating
profit, or a significant increase
in budgeted losses, flowing from
the asset;

— Operating losses or net cash
outflows for the asset, when
current period amounts
are aggregated with budgeted
amounts for the future.

The following factors indicate that
exploration and evaluation assets may
be impaired:
» The period for which the Company
has the right to explore
in the specific area has expired
during the period or will expire
in the near future, and is not
expected to be renewed;
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» Substantive expenditure on further
exploration for and evaluation
of mineral resources in the specific
area is neither budgeted nor
planned;

» Exploration for and evaluation
of mineral resources in the specific
area have not led to the discovery
of commercially viable quantities
of mineral resources and
the Company has decided
to discontinue such activities
in the specific areq;

» Sufficient data exist to indicate
that, although a development
in the specific area is likely
to proceed, the carrying amount
of the exploration and evaluation
asset is unlikely to be recovered
in full from successful development
or by sale.

The recoverable amount of an asset

or a cash-generating unit is the higher

of:

» The value in use of an asset (cash-
generating unit); and

» The fair value of an asset (cash-
generating unit) less costs to sell.

If the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent
of those from other assets,

its recoverable amount is determined
for the asset’s cash-generating unit.

The Company initially measures

the value in use of a cash-generating
unit. When the carrying amount

of a cash-generating unit is greater
than its value in use, the Company
measures the unit's fair value less
costs of disposal for the purpose

of measuring the recoverable amount.
When the fair value is less than

the carrying value an impairment loss
is recognized.

Value in use is determined

by discounting the estimated value
of the future cash inflows expected
to be derived from the asset or cash-
generating unit, including cash
inflows from its sale. The value

of the future cash inflows from

a cash-generating unit is determined
based on the forecast approved
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by management of the business unit
to which the unit in question pertains.

Impairment of financial assets
At each balance sheet date

the Company recognizes

an allowance for expected credit
losses on a financial asset measured
at amortised cost, and at fair value
through other comprehensive income,
a lease receivable, a contract asset
or a loan commitment and a financial
guarantee contract to which

the impairment requirements apply.
Requirements of IFRS 9 concerning
impairment do not apply to equity
instruments of any category

as well as to the instruments at fair
value though profit or loss.

Expected credit losses for significant
counterparties, including banks,

are determined based on credit
rating of particular counterparty and
relevant probability of default.

The allowance for financial asset

at amortised cost is recognized

in profit or loss in correspondence
with a balance sheet account
reducing the carrying amount

of the financial asset. The allowance
for financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income
shall be recognized in other funds
and reserves and shall not reduce
the carrying amount of the financial
asset in the statement of financial
position.

Capitalized interest

Interest expense on borrowed funds
used for capital construction projects
and the acquisition of property, plant
and equipment is capitalized provided
that the interest expense could

have been avoided if the Company
had not made capital investments.
Interest is capitalized only during

the period when construction activities
are actually in progress and until

the resulting properties are put into
operation.
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Capitalized borrowing costs include
exchange differences arising

from foreign currency borrowings

to the extent that they are regarded
as an adjustment to interest costs.

Leasing agreements

In respect of the contracts (or separate
components of a contract), which
convey to the Company the right

to control the use of an identified

asset (as it is determined in IFRS 16
Lease) for a period of time in exchange
for consideration, the Company
recognizes a right-of-use asset and

a lease liability at the commencement
date. Non-lease components

of the contract are accounted

for in accordance with other relevant
IFRS.

In accordance with requirements

of IFRS 16 Lease para 3-8,

the Company does not apply

the Standard to leases to explore

for or use minerals, oil, natural gas and
similar non-regenerative resources
and to leases of wells, to short-term
leases (taking into consideration
economically feasible prolongations),
as well as to leases for which

the underlying asset is of low value
(less kRUB300).

The Company determines the lease
term as the non-cancellable period
of a lease, together with both: periods
covered by an option to extend

the lease if the lessee is reasonably
certain to exercise that option;

and periods covered by an option

to terminate the lease if the lessee

is reasonably certain not to exercise
that option.

At the commencement date,

the Company measures the lease
liability at the present value

of the lease payments that are not
paid at that date. The lease payments
are discounted using the incremental
borrowing rate, as interest rate
implicit in the lease, as a rule, cannot
be readily determined. As the finance
function lays predominantly within
the parent company, incremental
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borrowing rates are calculated
centrally, except for the banks
of the Group and cases of direct
financing of the subsidiaries.

At the commencement date,

the Company measures the right-
of-use asset at cost, which
comprises the amount of the initial
measurement of the lease liability,
any lease payments made

at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives
received, any initial direct costs
incurred by the lessee, an estimate
of costs to be incurred by the lessee
in dismantling and removing

the underlying asset, restoring the site
on which it is located or restoring

the underlying asset to the condition
required by the terms and conditions
of the lease, unless those costs

are incurred to produce inventories.

Lease payments are evenly distributed
between finance expenses and

a decrease of a lease liability so that
a constant periodic rate of interest

is produced on the remaining balance
of the lease liability. Finance expenses
are recognized in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

In respect of subsequent accounting
for a leased property the same
accounting policies are applied

as for the owned assets, e.g.
depreciation policy.

Asset retirement
(decommissioning) obligations
The Company has asset retirement
(decommissioning) obligations
associated with its core business
activities.

The Company's exploration,
development and production activities
involve the use of wells, related
equipment and operating sites, oil
gathering and treatment facilities,
tank farms and in-field pipelines.

Generally, licenses and other

regulatory acts require that such
assets be decommissioned upon
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the completion of production.
According to these requirements,
the Company is obliged

to decommission wells, dismantle
equipment, restore the sites and
perform other related activities.
The Company'’s estimates of these
obligations are based on current
regulatory or license requirements,
as well as actual dismantling and
other related costs. These liabilities
are measured by the Company using
the present value of the estimated
future costs of decommissioning

of these assets. The discount rate
is reviewed at each reporting

date and reflects current market
assessments of the time value

of money and the risks specific

to the liability.

In accordance with IFRS
Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC”)
Interpretation 1 Changes in Existing
Decommissioning, Restoration
and Similar Liabilities, the provision
is reviewed at each balance sheet
date as follows:
» Upon changes in the estimates
of future cash flows (e.g., the costs
of and timeframe for abandoning
one well) or the discount
rate, changes in the amount
of the liability are included
in the cost of the item of property,
plant, and equipment, whereby such
cost may not be negative and may
not exceed the recoverable value
of the item of property, plant, and
equipment;
» Any changes in the liability
due to its nearing maturity (change
in the discount) are recognized
in Finance expenses.

The Company'’s refining and
distribution activities involve refining
operations, marine and other
distribution terminals, and retail sales.
The Company'’s refining operations
consist of major petrochemical
operations and industrial complexes.
Legal or contractual asset retirement
(decommissioning) obligations
related to petrochemical, oil refining
and distribution activities are not
recognized due to the limited

history of such activities in these
segments, the lack of clear legal
requirements as to the recognition

of obligations, as well as the fact that
decommissioning periods for such
assets are not determinable.

Because of the reasons described
above, the fair value of an asset
retirement (decommissioning)
obligation in the refining and
distribution segment cannot

be reasonably estimated.

Due to continuous changes

in the Russian regulatory and legal
environment, there could be future
changes to the requirements and
contingencies associated with

the retirement of long-lived assets.

Income tax

Deferred income tax assets

and liabilities are recognized

in the accompanying consolidated
financial statements in the amount
determined by the Company

in accordance with IAS 12 Income
Taxes. Deferred tax is provided using
the liability method on temporary
differences at the reporting date
between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts
for financial reporting purposes.

A deferred tax liability is recognized
for all taxable temporary differences,
except to the extent that the deferred
tax liability arises from:

» The initial recognition of goodwill;

» The initial recognition of an asset

or liability in a transaction which:

- Is not a business combination;

— At the time of the transaction,
affects neither accounting profit,
nor taxable profit (tax loss); and

— At the time of the transaction,
does not give rise to equal
taxable and deductible
temporary differences.

» Investments in subsidiaries when
the Company is able to control
the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences and
it is probable that the temporary
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differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

A prior period tax loss planned

to be used to reduce the current

or future amount of income tax

is recognized as a deferred tax asset.

A deferred tax asset is recognized only
to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary
differences can be utilized, unless

the deferred tax asset arises from

the initial recognition of an asset

or liability in a transaction that:

» |s not a business combination;

» At the time of the transaction,
affects neither accounting profit nor
taxable profit (tax loss); and

» At the time of the transaction, does
not give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences.

The Company recognizes deferred tax

assets for all deductible temporary

differences arising from investments

in subsidiaries and associates, and

interests in joint ventures, to the extent

that the following two conditions

are met:

» The temporary difference will reverse
in the foreseeable future; and

» Taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary
difference can be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities shall
be measured at the tax rates that

are expected to apply to the period
when the asset is realized

or the liability is settled, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted

by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax
assets and liabilities reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Company
expects, at the end of the reporting
period, to recover or settle

the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets against current
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tax liabilities and when they relate

to income taxes levied by the taxation
authority of the same jurisdiction

and the Company intends to settle

its current tax assets and liabilities

on a net basis.

The carrying amount of a deferred

tax asset is reviewed at each balance
sheet date. The Company reduces
the carrying amount of a deferred tax
asset to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow the benefit
of part or all of that deferred tax asset
to be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities

are classified as Non-current Deferred
tax assets and Non-current Deferred
tax liabilities, respectively. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not
discounted.

Recognition of revenues
Revenues are recognized when (or as)
the Company satisfies a performance
obligation by transferring a promised
good or service (i.e. an asset)

to a customer. An asset is transferred
when (or as) the customer obtains
control of that asset, which usually
occurs when the title is passed,
provided that the contract price

is fixed or determinable and
collectability of the amount

of the consideration is probable.
Specifically, domestic sales of crude
oil and gas, as well as petroleum
products and materials are usually
recognized when title passes.

For export sales, title generally
passes at the border of the Russian
Federation. Revenue is measured

at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable taking into
account the amount of any trade
discounts, volume rebates and
reimbursable taxes. Sales of support
services are recognized as services
are performed provided that

the service price can be determined
and no significant uncertainties
regarding the receipt of revenues
exist.

Corporate Governance
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Sales of support services

are recognized as services

are performed provided that

the service price can be determined
and no significant uncertainties
regarding the receipt of revenues
exist.

Transportation expenses
Transportation expenses recognized
in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss represent all expenses incurred
by the Company to transport crude
oil for refining and to end customers,
and to deliver petroleum products
from refineries to end customers
(these may include pipeline tariffs and
any additional railroad transportation
costs, handling costs, port fees, sea
freight and other costs).

Refinery maintenance costs

The Company recognizes the costs

of overhauls and preventive
maintenance performed with respect
to oil refining assets as expenses when
incurred.

Environmental liabilities
Expenditures that relate to an existing
condition caused by past operations,
and do not have a future economic
benefit, are expensed. Liabilities

for these expenditures are recorded
when environmental assessments

or clean ups are probable and

the costs can be reasonably
estimated.

Accounting for contingencies
Certain conditions may exist

as of the date of these consolidated
financial statements which may
further result in a loss to the Company,
but which will only be resolved when
one or more future events occur

or fail to occur. The Company'’s
management makes an assessment
of such contingent liabilities which

is based on assumptions and

is a matter of opinion. In assessing
loss contingencies relating to legal
or tax proceedings that involve
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the Company or unasserted claims
that may result in such proceedings,
the Company, after consultation
with legal or tax advisors, evaluates
the perceived merits of any legal

or tax proceedings or unasserted
claims as well as the perceived
merits of the amount of relief sought
or expected to be sought therein.

Provisions and contingent liabilities
do not constitute finally asserted
legal obligations of PJSC Rosneft Oil
Company.

If the assessment of a contingency
indicates that it is probable that

a loss will be incurred and the amount
of the liability can be estimated, then
the estimated liability is accrued

in the Company's consolidated
financial statements. If the assessment
indicates that a potentially material
loss contingency is not probable, but
is reasonably possible, or is probable
but cannot be estimated, then

the nature of the contingent liability,
together with an estimate of the range
of possible loss if determinable and
material, would be disclosed.

Loss contingencies considered remote
are generally not disclosed unless they
involve financial guarantees, in which
case the nature of the guarantee
would be disclosed. However, in some
instances in which disclosure is not
otherwise required, the Company

may disclose contingent liabilities

or other uncertainties of an unusual
nature which, in the judgment

of management after consultation
with its legal or tax counsel, may

be of interest to shareholders

or others.

Taxes collected from customers
and remitted to governmental
authorities

Refundable taxes (excise and value-
added tax ("VAT")) are deducted from
revenues. Other taxes and duties

are not deducted from revenues

and are recognized as expenses

in Taxes other than income tax
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in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

VAT and excise receivable and
payable are recognized as Value
added tax, excise and other taxes
receivable and Other tax liabilities
in the consolidated balance sheet,
respectively.

Excises non-refundable

by customers

Excises non-refundable by customers
are presented within Taxes other
than income tax in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

The expenses mentioned above

are decreased by reverse excise

on petroleum crudes.

Tax on additional income (AIT)
AlT is recognized as an expense

within Taxes other than income

tax in the consolidated statement

of profit or loss, as the management
of the Company perceives AIT as a tax
related to extraction activities.

Functional and presentation
currency

The summary consolidated financial
statements are presented in Russian
rubles, which is the functional
currency of Rosneft Oil Company

and the majority of its subsidiaries
operating in the Russian Federation.
The functional currency of the foreign
subsidiaries is generally the U.S. dollar.

Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions

are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of these
transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from

the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies at year-end
exchange rates are recognized

in the profit or loss for the period.

Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the translation

of monetary assets and liabilities
designated as foreign currency
cash flow hedging instruments

are recognized within other
comprehensive income and
reclassified to profit or loss

in the period when the hedged item
affects profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that

are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency

are translated using the exchange
rates as at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using

the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value is determined.

Company's subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates
The results and financial position of all
of the Company's subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates that have
a functional currency which is different
from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation
currency as follows:
» Assets and liabilities for each
balance sheet presented
are translated at the closing rate
at that reporting date;
» Income and expenses for each
statement of profit or loss and
each statement of comprehensive
income are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate
on the dates of the transactions); and
> All resulting exchange differences
are recognized as a separate
component of comprehensive
income.
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Prepayment on oil and
petroleum products supply
agreements

In the ordinary course of business,
the Company enters into long-term
oil supply contracts. The contract
terms may require the buyer to make
a prepayment.

The Company considers long-term
oil supply contracts to be regular-
way sale contracts entered into and
continued to be held for the purpose
of the receipt or delivery of non-
financial items in accordance with
the Company’s expected purchase,
sale or usage requirements. Regular-
way sale contracts are exempted
from the scope of IAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation and IFRS 9
Financial Instruments.

Conditions for meeting the definition

of a regular-way sale are not met

if either of the following applies:

» The ability to settle netin cash
or another financial instrument,
or by exchanging financiall
instruments, is not explicit
in the terms of the contract, but
the Company has a practice
of settling similar contracts net
in cash or via another financial
instrument or by exchanging
financial instruments (whether with
the counterparty, by entering into
offsetting contracts or by selling
the contract before its exercise
or lapse);

» For similar contracts, the Company
has a practice of taking delivery
of the underlying goods and
selling them within a short period
after delivery for the purpose
of generating a profit from short-
term fluctuations in price or from
a dealer's margin.

Prepayments received for the delivery
of goods or respective deferred
revenue are accounted for as non-
financial liabilities because the outflow
of economic benefits associated with
them is the delivery of goods and
services rather than a contractual
obligation to pay cash or another
financial asset.

www.rosneft.com
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Changes in accounting policies

and disclosures

The accounting policies adopted

are consistent with those

of the previous financial year except

for the adoption of a new standard

and amendments to existing

standards effective as of January 1,

2024:

» Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation
of Financial Statements named
Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current.

The amendments clarify
requirements for classifying liabilities
as current or non-current and were
early adopted by the Company;

» Amendments to IFRS 16 Leases
related to lease liability in a sale
and leaseback. The amendments
require from the seller-lessee
to measure lease liability arising from
leaseback in such a way, that no
profit or loss is recognised in respect
of the right-of-use retained;

» Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation
of Financial Statements named
Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants. The amendments
presume that liability is classified
as non-current if the company
has a substantial right to defer
settlement for at least 12
months after the reporting date.
The amendments clarify the criteria
of classification (incl. that “future”
covenants as well as management
intentions do not affect
classification as of the reporting
date) and require certain additional
disclosures (Note 29);

» Amendments to IAS 7 Statement
of Cash Flows and IFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures named
Supplier Finance Arrangements.
The amendments clarify
the influence of supplier finance
arrangements on liabilities,
cash flows, exposure to liquidity
risk and risk management. Also
the amendments presume certain
additional disclosures.

The amendments mentioned above
did not have a material impact

on the summary consolidated financial
statements.

Corporate Governance
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While preparing these summary
consolidated financial statements,
the Company has changed the title
of the totaling line of the summary
consolidated statement of profit

or loss so that it most closely
approximates the one used by IFRS
standards and the companies

in the same industry (“Net income”
was renamed to “Profit for the year”).
The rules for calculating the "Profit
for the year” line have not changed.

3. Significant
accounting judgements,
estimations and
assumptions

The preparation of summary
consolidated financial statements
requires management to make

a number of accounting estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and
the disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities. The actual results,
however, could differ from those
estimates.

The most significant accounting

estimates and assumptions used

by the Company’'s management

in preparing the summary

consolidated financial statements

include:

» Estimation of oil and gas reserves;

» Estimation of rights to, recoverability
and useful lives of non-current
assets;

» Impairment of goodwill, fixed assets
and right-of-use assets;

» Estimated allowance for expected
credit losses for accounts
receivable;

» Assessment of asset retirement
(decommissioning) obligations;

» Assessment of legal, tax
contingencies, non-financial
guarantees, recognition
and disclosure of contingent
liabilities, as well as recognition
and measurement of financial
guarantees;
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» Assessment of deferred income tax
assets and liabilities;

» Assessment of environmental
remediation obligations;

» Fair value measurements;

» Purchase price allocation
to the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed;

» Treatment of certain taxes
as income taxes, production taxes
or other taxes, e.g. treatment
of the tax on additional income.

Significant estimates and assumptions
affecting the reported amounts

are those used in determining

the economic recoverability

of reserves.

Such estimates and assumptions
may change over time when new
information becomes available, e.g.:
» More detailed information
on reserves was obtained (either
as a result of more detailed
engineering calculations
or additional exploration drilling
activities);
» Supplemental activities to enhance
oil recovery were conducted;
» Changes were made in economic
estimates and assumptions (e.g.
a change in pricing factors).

4. New and amended
standards and
interpretations issued
but not yet effective

In August 2023, the IASB issued
amendments to IAS 21 The Effects

of Changes in Foreign Exchange
Rates named Lack of Exchangeability.
The amendments clarify when
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the currency is not exchangeable
into the other currency, the order

of estimation of the spot

exchange rate when the currency

is not exchangeable, and sets

the requirements for the related
disclosures. The amendments

are effective on or after January 1,
2025; earlier application is permitted.

In April 2024, the IASB issued new
standard IFRS 18 Presentation and
Disclosure in Financial Statements.
This standard will replace IAS 1
Presentation of Financial Statements.
New standard implements significant
changes in the presentation

of Statement of profit or loss,

in particular it classifies income and
expenses into three main categories
(operating, investing and financing)
plus income taxes' category and
discontinued operations’ category;
the standard requires additional
defined subtotals (operating profit and
profit before financing and income
taxes); requires entity to classify
foreign exchange differences

in the same category as the income
and expenses from the items that
gave rise to the foreign exchange
differences, as well as implements

a series of other less significant
changes in financial statements
presentation — with a view to enhance
its comparability and transparency.
Also the standard sets requirements
for disclosures about management-
defined performance measures.

The standard is effective for annual
periods commencing on or after
January 1, 2027; earlier application

is permitted.

In May 2024, the IASB issued new
standard IFRS 19 Subsidiaries
without Public Accountability:

Disclosures. Reducing disclosure
requirements for eligible subsidiaries,
the standard enables simplification
of financial statements preparation
and cutting preparation costs, while
maintaining the usefulness of those
financial statements for their users.
The standard is effective for annual
periods commencing on or after
January 1, 2027; earlier application
is permitted.

In May 2024, the IASB issued
amendments to IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments and IFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures. Amendments
include clarifying the classification

of financial assets with environmental,
social and corporate governance
(ESG) and similar features; settlement
of liabilities through electronic
payment systems, as well as sets

a series of additional disclosure
requirements. The amendments

are required to be applied

for the annual periods beginning

on or after January 1, 2026; earlier
application is permitted.

In December 2024, the IASB

issued targeted amendments

to IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

and IFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures to help companies
better report the financial effects

of nature-dependent electricity
contracts. The amendments clarify
the application of the "own-use”
requirements, permitting hedge-
accounting, as well as they set
additional disclosure requirements.
The amendments are required

to be applied for the annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2026;
earlier application is permitted.
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With the exception of IFRS 18
Presentation and Disclosure

in Financial Statements, the Company
does not expect the above-
mentioned changes to have

a material impact on the consolidated
financial statements. The Company

About the Company

is in process of preliminary
assessment of possible implications
of IFRS 18 on financial statements,

as well as on necessity of changes

in processes and accounting systems.

5. Property, plant and equipment

Corporate Governance

Appendices

The Company does not plan for early
adoption in respect of the above-
mentioned standards and
amendments.

Total
Cost as of January 1, 2024 18,139
Depreciation, depletion and impairment as of January 1, 2024 (5,810)
Net book value as of January 1, 2024 12,329
Prepayments for property, plant and equipment as of January 1, 2024 310
Total as of January 1, 2024 12,639
Cost
Additions 2,075
Disposals and other movements (74)
Foreign exchange differences 188
Changes in cost of asset retirement (decommissioning) obligations (37)
As of December 31, 2024 20,291
Depreciation, depletion and impairment
Depreciation, depletion and impairment (829)
Disposals and other movements 37
Foreign exchange differences (&7)
As of December 31, 2024 (6,649)
Net book value as of December 31, 2024 13,642
Prepayments for property, plant and equipment as of December 31, 2024 294
Total as of December 31, 2024 13,936

6. Shareholders' equity

On June 30, 2023 the Annual General
Shareholders Meeting approved
dividends on the Company's common
shares for 2022 in the amount

of RUB17.97 per share, which comprised
RUB171 billion (excluding dividends
related to treasury shares).

On December 22, 2023,

the Extraordinary General Shareholders
Meeting approved payment of interim

www.rosneft.com

dividends on the Company's common
shares from the consolidated profit
attributable to Rosneft shareholders
for the first half of 2023 in the amount
of RUB30.77 per share, which comprises
RUB292 billion (excluding dividends
related to treasury shares).

On June 28, 2024, the Annual General
Shareholders Meeting approved
dividends on the Company's common
shares for 2023 in the amount

of RUB29.01 per share, which comprised

RUB275.6 billion (excluding dividends
related to treasury shares).

On December 23, 2024,

the Extraordinary General Shareholders
Meeting approved payment of interim
dividends on the Company's common
shares from the consolidated profit
attributable to Rosneft shareholders
for the first half of 2024 in the amount
of RUB36.47 per share, which comprises
RUB346 billion (excluding dividends
related to treasury shares).
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Report on compliance with the principles

and recommendations of the Corporate Governance Code

This report on compliance with the
principles and recommendations

of the Corporate Governance

Code (the Report) was reviewed by
Rosneft's Board of Directors at a
meeting held on 25 April 2025 (Minutes
No. 17 dated 25 April 2025) as part of
the 2024 Annual Report.

The Board of Directors certifies

that this Report contains complete
and reliable information on Rosneft's
compliance with the principles

No. Corporate governance principles

and recommendations
of the Corporate Governance Code
in 2024.

Rosneft assesses its compliance

with the Corporate Governance Code
as per the guidelines recommended
by the Bank of Russia in Letter

No. IN-06-28/102 on Disclosure

of Compliance with the Principles

and Recommendations

of the Corporate Governance Code
in the Annual Report of a Public

Joint-Stock Company dated

27 December 2021. Key aspects
of the Company's corporate
governance model and practice
are outlined in Section Corporate

Governance of Rosneft's 2024 Annual

Report.

Criteria for compliance with a corporate governance principle

Status' of compliance
with a corporate governance
principle

About the Company Corporate Governance Appendices

Explanations? on the failure to meet criteria for compliance with a corporate governance principle

1.1 The Company shall ensure equitable and fair treatment of all shareholders
exercising their right to participate in managing the Company

111 The Company provides the best possible 1. The Company provides an easily accessible communication channel,
conditions for shareholders to participate such as a hotline, email or online forum, for shareholders to express
in General Shareholders Meetings, make their opinions and put questions regarding the agenda in preparation
informed decisions on agenda items, coordinate for a General Shareholders Meeting.
their actions and express their opinions
on matters under consideration The Company provided such communication channels and made
them available to shareholders before every General Shareholders

Meeting held in the reporting period

» Complied with
Complied with in part

Not complied with

To maintain effective relations with shareholders, Rosneft provides the following communication
channels: a shareholder hotline, mail and email, fax.

The Company does not consider setting up a dedicated online forum, as it has other
communication channels in place, as well as provides for the opportunity to discuss agenda
items at General Shareholders Meetings and, if relevant, using Rosneft’s social networks, which
are mentioned on Rosneft's official website

11.2 The procedure to notify shareholders 1. Inthe reporting year, the notice of a General Shareholders Meeting
of a General Shareholders Meeting and provide was posted (published) on the Company's website at least 30 days
them with relevant materials enables them to get prior to the date of the Meeting, unless the applicable law established

a longer period.

2. The notice specified the documents required for admission
to the Meeting venue.

3. Shareholders were informed about the persons who proposed
agenda items and nominated candidates to the Company’s Board
of Directors and Audit Commission (if the Company’s Charter required
establishing such Commission)

well-prepared

» Complied with
Complied with in part

Not complied with

T The "complied with" status is assigned only if the Company’s corporate practice meets all the criteria for compliance with a corporate governance
principle set out in the third column of the form to be used for reporting on compliance with the Code’s principles. If the Company’s corporate practice
meets only some of the compliance criteria or none of them, the "complied with in part” or "not complied with” status is assigned in the fourth column
of the form to be used for reporting on compliance with the Code’s principles.

2 Explanations are given for each criterion for compliance with a corporate governance principle (assessment criterion) if the Company meets only
some of the criteria or none of them.
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No. Corporate governance principles Criteria for compliance with a corporate governance principle Status of compliance Explanations? on the failure to meet criteria for compliance with a corporate governance principle
with a corporate governance
principle
11.3 When preparing for and participating In the reporting period, shareholders had the opportunity to put » Complied with
in a General Shareholders Meeting, shareholders questions to the Company's executive bodies and directors both ) o
have unrestricted and timely access before and during the General Shareholders Meeting. Complied with in part
to any relevant information and materials, . The Board of Directors' opinions (including dissenting opinions (if any) Not complied with
and are able to put questions to the Company's recorded in the minutes) on each of the agenda items of the General
executive bodies and directors, Shareholders Meetings held in the reporting period were added
as well as communicate with one another to the Meeting materials.
. The lists of persons entitled to participate in each General
Shareholders Meeting in the reporting period were made
available to the shareholders eligible to review such lists
as soon as the Company received those
1.4 There are no unjustified difficulties preventing The Charter enables shareholders to propose items for the agenda » Complied with
shareholders from exercising their rights of the Annual General Shareholders Meeting during at least 60 days . o
to convene a General Shareholders Meeting, after the end of the respective calendar year. Complied with in part
nominate candidates to the governing bodies In the reporting period, the Company rejected no item proposed Not complied with
and propose items for the agenda for the agenda and no candidate to the Company’s bodies due
to misprints or other minor flaws in shareholders’ proposals
11.5 Each shareholder is able to exercise their voting The Company's Charter enables shareholders to fill out an electronic » Complied with
right without hindrance, in the simplest and most voting ballot on the website specified in the notice of a General ) o
convenient way Shareholders Meeting Complied with in part
Not complied with
11.6 The procedure for holding a General In the reporting period, sufficient time for reporting on and discussing » Complied with Explanation on items 1-3: no General Shareholders Meetings were held in the form of a meeting
Shareholders Meeting established agenda items was provided at General Shareholders Meetings ) o (joint presence of shareholders) during the reporting period in line with Federal Law No. 25-FZ
by the Company provides all persons present held in the form of a meeting (joint presence of shareholders), Complied with in part of 25 February 2022 On Amending the Federal Law On Joint-Stock Companies and Suspending
at the Meeting with equal opportunities with shareholders having an opportunity to express their opinions Not complied with Certain Provisions of Legislative Acts of the Russian Federation
to express their opinions and ask questions and ask questions on agenda items.
. The Company extended invitations to the candidates nominated
to the Company's governing and supervisory bodies and took all
the necessary steps to make sure they participate in the General
Shareholders Meeting convened to vote on their candidacies. During
the Meeting, candidates to the Company’s governing and supervisory
bodies were available for questions from the shareholders.
. The sole executive body, the officer in charge of accounting,
the Chairman or other members of the Board's Audit Committee
were all available for questions from the shareholders during
the General Shareholders Meetings held in the reporting period.
In the reporting period, the Company used telecommunications
equipment to provide shareholders with remote access to participate
in the General Shareholders Meetings, or the Board of Directors
made a well-informed decision to abstain from using such equipment
in the reporting period due to its irrelevance (unavailability)
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No. Corporate governance principles Criteria for compliance with a corporate governance principle

Status of compliance

with a corporate governance

principle

About the Company Corporate Governance Appendices

Explanations? on the failure to meet criteria for compliance with a corporate governance principle

1.2 Shareholders are provided with an equitable and fair opportunity to receive
a share of the Company'’s profits in the form of dividends

1.21 The Company has developed and implemented 1. Regulations on the Company's Dividend Policy have been approved
a transparent and clear procedure to determine by the Board of Directors and disclosed on the Company’s website.
the amount of dividends and pay them out 2. If,in accordance with the dividend policy of a company issuing

consolidated financial statements, the amount of dividends
is determined based on the company’s results recorded in its financial
statements, the dividend policy shall employ the consolidated
financial statements.

3. Inthe reporting period, substantiation of the suggested net
income distribution arrangements, including dividend payments
and allocations for the Company’s own needs, and their assessment
for compliance with the Company'’s dividend policy (including
explanations and the economic rationale for allocating part
of the net income to cover the Company’s own needs) were included
in the materials for the General Shareholders Meeting set to consider
income distribution (including dividend payments / dividend

» Complied with
Complied with in part

Not complied with

declaration)
1.2.2 The Company does not resolve to pay out 1. In addition to statutory restrictions, the Regulations on the Company's
dividends if such resolution, though not in breach Dividend Policy define financial/economic circumstances under which

of the legislation, is not economically viable the Company shall not pay out dividends
and may lead to false assumptions about

the Company's operations

Complied with
» Complied with in part

Not complied with

Pursuant to Resolution of the Government of the Russian Federation No. 774-r dated 29 May
2006, the Rosneft Dividend Policy sets the procedure for determining dividend payments: no less
than 50% of Rosneft's net income under the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).
Said Resolution of the Government contains no restrictions (in addition to statutory restrictions)
on a resolution to pay no dividends.

In accordance with recommendations approved by the Bank of Russia with respect to disclosure
of compliance with the principles and recommendations of the Corporate Governance Code

in the annual report of a public joint-stock company (Bank of Russia's Letter No. IN-06-28/102
dated 27 December 2027) and clause 2.2.3 of the Rosneft's Dividend Policy, the Company
included explanations of the Board of Directors on the absence of any financial limitations

on dividend payments in the materials for the General Shareholders Meeting set to consider
income distribution (for 2023).

Rosneft plans to introduce no amendments to its Dividend Policy unless the Russian Government
changes the dividend payment procedure set out in its regulations

» Complied with
Complied with in part

Not complied with

1.2.3 The Company does not allow any negative 1. Inthe reporting period, the Company did not perform any actions
changes in the dividend rights of its current causing negative changes in the dividend rights of its current
shareholders shareholders

1.2.4 The Company makes every effort to prevent 1. Inthe reporting period, persons controlling the Company did not
shareholders from receiving profit (gain) from use any means to receive profit (gain) from the Company other than
the Company other than in the form of dividends in the form of dividends (for example, by resorting to transfer pricing,

and liquidation value unjustifiably rendering services to the Company at inflated prices,
or using internal loans issued to controlling persons and/or their

controlled entities as a substitution for dividends)

» Complied with
Complied with in part

Not complied with

1.3 Corporate governance framework and practices ensure equality of all shareholders owning shares of the same
class (type), including minority and foreign shareholders, and their equitable treatment by the Company

1.31 The Company ensures fair treatment 1. Inthe reporting period, persons controlling the Company did
of each shareholder by its governing bodies not abuse the rights of the Company’s shareholders, and there
and controlling persons, specifically allowing were no conflicts between persons controlling the Company
no abuse of minority shareholders by major and the Company's shareholders (or even if there were any, the Board
shareholders of Directors gave such conflicts due consideration)

» Complied with
Complied with in part

Not complied with
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No. Corporate governance principles Criteria for compliance with a corporate governance principle Status of compliance Explanations? on the failure to meet criteria for compliance with a corporate governance principle
with a corporate governance
principle
1.3.2 The Company does not perform any actions The Company has no quasi-treasury shares, or no quasi-treasury Complied with Pursuant to the Russian Government's resolution, Rosneft signed an agreement with a 100%

that will or may result in artificial redistribution
of corporate control

shares were used in voting during the reporting period

» Complied with in part

Not complied with

government-owned company to sell all of Rosneft's interests and cease participation in all of its
projects in Venezuela, including the joint ventures of Petromonagas, Petroperija, Boqueron,
Petromiranda and Petrovictoria, as well as oilfield services companies, commercial and trading
operations.

Based on the agreement, all Rosneft assets and trading operations in Venezuela and/or those
with connection to Venezuela have been disposed of, terminated or liquidated.

The agreement and the sale of assets resulted in Rosneft's wholly-owned subsidiary receiving a
9.6% stake in its parent company.

In addition, the Company's Open Market Share Buyback Programme, which also covers GDRs,
saw its 100% subsidiary acquire a further 0.76% stake. None of these shares were used in voting
during the reporting period

1.4 Shareholders are provided with reliable and effective methods of registering their ownership
of shares and the opportunity to dispose of their shares freely and without hindrance

141

Shareholders are provided with reliable
and effective methods of registering their
ownership of shares and the opportunity

to dispose of their shares freely and without
hindrance

The technologies used by the Company's registrar and the terms

and quality of rendered services meet the needs of the Company

and its shareholders and ensure the most effective way to keep record
of share ownership and exercise shareholder rights

» Complied with
Complied with in part

Not complied with

2.1 The Board of Directors is responsible for the strategic management of the Company, formulating
key principles of and approaches to the risk management and internal control system in the Company,
supervising the work of the Company'’s executive bodies and performing other core functions

211 The Board of Directors is responsible The Board of Directors has the powers stated in the Charter to appoint » Complied with
for the appointment of executive bodies and dismiss members of executive bodies and to determine the terms ) o
and their dismissal, including as a result of failure and conditions of their contracts. Complied with in part
to perform properly. The Board of Directors In the reporting period, the Nomination (Appointment, HR) Not complied with
also ensures that the Company's executive Committee'considered the matter regarding whether the members
bodies act in accordance with the approved of executive bodies had the necessary professional qualification, skills
development strategy and the Company's and expertise to meet the current and expected needs of society
business profile in line with the Company's approved strategy.
In the reporting period, the Board of Directors reviewed the report
(reports) of the sole executive body and the collective executive body
(if applicable) on the implementation of the Company's strategy
21.2 The Board of Directors sets major long-term In the reporting period, the Board of Directors addressed matters » Complied with
targets for the Company, as well as assesses related to the strategy implementation and revision, approval ) o
and approves its key performance of the Company'’s financial and business plan (budget), and review Complied with in part
indicators and primary business goals, along of criteria and indicators (including interim ones) as regards delivering Not complied with
with the Company'’s strategy and business plans on the Company's strategy and business plans
with regard to its core operations
21.3 The Board of Directors formulates the principles The principles of, and approaches to, organising the Company's » Complied with
of and approaches to risk management risk management and internal control system were established ) o
and internal control system in the Company by the Board of Directors and are set out in the Company’s internal Complied with in part
regulations defining the risk and internal control management policy. Not complied with
In the reporting period, the Board of Directors approved (revised)
the Company's acceptable risks (risk appetite) or the Audit Committee
and/or the Risk Committee (if applicable) considered the feasibility
of putting forward the revision of the Company'’s risk appetite
for consideration by the Board of Directors
214 The Board of Directors determines The Company has developed and implemented the policy » Complied with

the Company's policy on remuneration and/

or reimbursement of expenses (compensations)
to its directors, executive bodies and other key
managers

(policies) approved by the Board of Directors on remuneration
and reimbursement of expenses (compensations) to its directors,
executive bodies and other key managers.

In the reporting period, the Board of Directors addressed matters
related to the above policy (policies)

Complied with in part

Not complied with

T Hereinafter the Nomination Committee.
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215 The Board of Directors plays a key role The Board of Directors plays a key role in preventing, identifying » Complied with
in preventing, identifying and resolving internal and resolving internal conflicts. c lied with i ¢
conflicts between the Company's bodies, . The Company has developed a framework for identifying transactions omplied with In par
shareholders and employees involving a conflict of interest and a set of measures for resolving such Not complied with
conflicts
21.6 The Board of Directors plays a key role in ensuring The Company has determined persons responsible » Complied with
the Company's transparency, full and timely for the implementation of the Information Policy in its internal c lied with ¢
information disclosure, and unhindered access regulations omplied with In par
of shareholders to the Company's documents Not complied with
217 The Board of Directors oversees the Company's In the reporting period, the Board of Directors reviewed the results » Complied with

corporate governance practices and plays a key
role in the Company's material corporate events

of self-assessment and/or external assessment of the Company'’s
corporate governance practices

Complied with in part

Not complied with

2.2 The Board of Directors is accountable to the Company's shareholders

2.21 Information on the performance of the Board The Company's Annual Report for the reporting period includes Complied with Information on attendance of meetings of the Board of Directors and its Committees is not
of Directors is disclosed and provided information on attendance of meetings of the Board of Directors > C lied with i disclosed in the Annual Report in accordance with Presidential Executive Order No. 903 dated
to shareholders and Committees by each of directors. omplied with in part 27 November 2023.

2. The Annual Report includes information on key results of the Board Not complied with ) o ) . . .
of Directors’ performance assessment (self-assessment) carried out Ro_zn(e)f‘;do.es‘ nOt%O? tocla consider any changes in its approach to information disclosure until
in the reporting period sal raeris invalidate

2.2.2 The Chairman of the Board of Directors is The Company has a transparent procedure in place for shareholders » Complied with

available for contact by the Company's
shareholders

to send requests to the Chairman of the Board of Directors (and, if
applicable, the senior independent director) and to receive feedback

Complied with in part

Not complied with

2.3 The Board of Directors manages the Company in an effective and competent manner, and is able to make
objective and independent judgements and decisions in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders

2.31 Elected to the Board of Directors are only In the reporting period, the Board of Directors (or its Nomination » Complied with
those individuals who have an impeccable Committee) assessed candidates to the Board of Directors in terms ) o
business and personal reputation, of their required experience, knowledge, business reputation, lack Complied with in part
as well as the knowledge, skills and experience of conflict of interest, etc. Not complied with
required for making decisions within the remit
of the Board of Directors and performing its
functions effectively

2.3.2 The Company'’s directors are elected through In all cases where the agenda of a General Shareholders Meeting held » Complied with
a transparent procedure providing shareholders in the reporting period included election to the Board of Directors, . L
with sufficient information on candidates to form the Company provided shareholders with biographical details of all Complied with in part
an opinion about their personal and professional candidates to the Board of Directors, results of assessment carried out Not complied with
qualities by the Board of Directors (or its Nomination Committee) to determine

whether the members had the necessary professional qualification,
skills and expertise to meet the current and expected needs of the
Company information on their compliance with the independence
criteria as per Recommendations 102-107 of the Code, and their
written consent to be elected to the Board of Directors

2.3.3 The composition of the Board of Directors In the reporting period, the Board of Directors analysed its » Complied with
is balanced, including in terms of directors’ needs in terms of professional qualifications, expertise and skills ) o
expertise, experience, knowledge and business and identified the competencies the Board of Directors needs Complied with in part
skills, and worthy of shareholders’ trust to develop in the short and long run Not complied with
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2.3.4 The number of directors ensures the most In the reporting period, the Board of Directors reviewed whether » Complied with

effective arrangement of activities

of the Company's Board of Directors, including
by way of establishing Committees, and enables
a candidate voted for by the Company'’s
substantial minority shareholders to be elected
to the Board of Directors

the number of directors was in line with the Company’s needs
and shareholders’ interests

Complied with in part

Not complied with

2.4 The Board of Directors includes a sufficient number of independent directors

2.4 An independent director is a person In the reporting period, all independent directors met all » Complied with
with sufficient professional skills, experience of the independence criteria as per Recommendations 102-107 ) e
and independence to form their own opinions of the Code or were recognised as independent by the Board Complied with in part
and make objective and fair judgements of Directors Not complied with
not influenced by the Company's executive
bodies, certain groups of shareholders or other
stakeholders.
Under normal circumstances a candidate
(elected director) may not be considered
independent if they are related to the Company,
its substantial shareholder, its substantial
counterparty or competitor, or the government
2.4.2 Candidates to the Board of Directors In the reporting period, the Board of Directors (or its Nomination » Complied with
are assessed for compliance Committee) formed an opinion regarding the independence of each ) _
with the independence criteria, with independent candidate to the Board of Directors and submitted the relevant report Complied with in part
directors being regularly checked against to shareholders. Not complied with
these criteria. Such assessments is in line . The Board of Directors (or the Nomination Committee) considered
with the substance over form principle the independence of the current directors (after they had been
elected) at least once in the reporting period.
The Company has developed procedures determining actions
to be taken by a director if they cease to be independent, including
their obligation to notify the Board of Directors accordingly
and in a timely manner
2.4.3 Independent directors make up at least one third Independent directors make up at least one third of the Board » Complied with
of the elected directors of Directors ) _
Complied with in part
Not complied with
2.4.4 Independent directors play a key role In the reporting period, independent directors (with no conflict » Complied with

in preventing internal conflicts in the Company
and taking material corporate actions
by the Company

of interest) make a preliminary assessment of material corporate
actions involving a potential conflict of interest and submit the results
thereof to the Board of Directors

Complied with in part

Not complied with

2.5 The Chairman of the Board of Directors ensures that the Board of Directors
performs its functions in the most effective way

2.5

The Chairman of the Board of Directors has been
elected from among independent directors,

or a senior independent director has been
appointed from among the elected independent
directors to coordinate their work and liaise

with the Chairman of the Board of Directors

The Chairman of the Board of Directors is an independent director,
or a senior independent director has been appointed from among
independent directors’.

. The role, rights and responsibilities of the Chairman of the Board

of Directors (and, if applicable, of the senior independent director)
are duly specified in the Company's internal regulations

» Complied with
Complied with in part

Not complied with

T The Company specifies which of the two suggested approaches it uses.
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252 The Chairman of the Board of Directors ensures 1. Inthe reporting period, the performance of the Chairman of the Board » Complied with
constructive atmosphere during meetings, of Directors was assessed as part of the Board of Directors’ c lied with | ¢
facilitates open discussion of agenda items performance assessment (self-assessment) omplied with In par
and oversees implementation of the Board Not complied with
of Directors' resolutions
253 The Chairman of the Board of Directors ensures 1. The responsibility of the Chairman of the Board of Directors to ensure » Complied with

that directors are provided with information
required to make informed decisions on agenda
items in a timely manner

timely provision to directors of complete and reliable information
on agenda items is specified in the Company's regulations

Complied with in part

Not complied with

2.6 Directors act reasonably and in good faith in the best interests of the Company and its
shareholders, based on sufficient awareness and with due diligence and care

2.6.1 Directors make decisions taking into account 1. The Company's internal regulations specify that directors shall notify » Complied with
all available information, having no conflict the Board of Directors of any conflict of interest they might have . o
of interest, ensuring equitable treatment in relation to any agenda item prior to the discussion of that item Complied with in part
of the Company's shareholders and keeping at a meeting of the Board of Directors or its Committee. Not complied with
within the limits of common business risks 2. The Company's internal regulations specify that a director shall
abstain from voting on any item where they have a conflict of interest.
3. The Company has established a procedure enabling the Board
of Directors to get professional advice on matters within its remit
at the Company'’s expense
2.6.2 Directors' rights and responsibilities are clearly 1. The Company has adopted and published an internal regulation » Complied with
f:;tel;jt%nni set forth in the Company'’s internal clearly specifying directors' rights and responsibilities Complied with in part
Not complied with
2.6.3 Directors have sufficient time to perform their 1. The assessment (self-assessment) of the Board of Directors » Complied with
duties in the reporting period included the analysis of individual attendance ) .
of meetings of the Board of Directors and the Committees Complied with in part
and a review of whether a director had been on the Board long Not complied with
enough.
2. As per the Company's internal regulations, directors shall notify
the Board of Directors of their intention to join the governing bodies
of other companies (excluding those controlled by the Company)
and of the fact of such an appointment
2.6.4 All directors have equal access to the Company's 1. As per the Company's internal regulations, directors have the right » Complied with

documents and information. Newly elected
directors are provided with sufficient information
on the Company and the Board of Directors’
activities as soon as practicable

to access information and documents needed for the performance
of their duties related to the Company and its controlled entities,
and the Company's executive bodies are obliged to procure

the relevant information and documents.

The Company has a formalised induction programme in place

for newly elected directors

Complied with in part

Not complied with

2.7 Meetings of the Board of Directors, preparation for and attendance of these
meetings are key to the effectiveness of the Board of Directors

271 Meetings of the Board of Directors are held 1. The Board of Directors held at least six meetings in the reporting year » Complied with
as necessary, given the Company's scope ) e
of operations and objectives at any given time Complied with in part
Not complied with
272 The Company'’s internal regulations set out 1. The Company has approved an internal regulation setting out » Complied with
a procedure to prepare and hold meetings the procedure to prepare and hold meetings of the Board of Directors c lied with i
of the Board of Directors enabling directors and specifying, among other things, that the notice of a meeting shall omplied with in part
to make proper preparations be generally given at least five days prior to the date of the meeting. Not complied with
2. Inthe reporting period, the directors who were unable to attend
the meeting in person had the opportunity to participate in discussion
and voting on agenda items remotely — via conference calls and video
conferencing
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273 The format of a meeting of the Board 1. The Company's Charter or another internal regulation specifies » Complied with
of Directors is determined taking into account that the most important matters (including those listed c lied with | ¢
the importance of agenda items. Resolutions in Recommendation 168 of the Code) shall be reviewed at in-person omplied with In par
on the most important matters are adopted meetings of the Board of Directors Not complied with
at in-person meetings
2.7.4 Resolutions on the most important matters 1. The Company's Charter specifies that resolutions on the most Complied with Paragraph 10.5.5 of Rosneft's Charter specifies the range of matters to be resolved by the Board

related to the Company's operations

are adopted at meetings of the Board

of Directors by a qualified majority vote or
by a majority vote of all elected directors

important matters, as per Recommendation 170 of the Code, shall
be adopted at meetings of the Board of Directors by a qualified
majority of at least three quarters of the votes or by a majority vote
of all elected directors

of Directors by a qualified majority vote. Given the scope of Rosneft's operations, the number
of matters reviewed by the Board of Directors, the composition of the Board of Directors

and the economic sanctions the Company is exposed to, expanding this range to include

all matters set out in Recommendation 170 of the Code may materially impede or prevent
the resolution of matters material to the Company. Therefore, setting a higher quorum

as recommended by the Code may result in the Board of Directors not being able to resolve
a number of key matters. At the same time, the number of directors, the structure of the Board
of Directors, including four independent directors, the procedure to prepare for meetings,
discuss matters at them and disclose information on them guarantee the protection of rights
of all shareholder groups of the Company. The Company has no intention to change its
approach in the medium term

» Complied with in part

Not complied with

2.8 The Board of Directors establishes Committees for preliminary consideration
of the most important matters related to the Company’s operations

2.8

For preliminary consideration of matters related

to the monitoring of the Company's financial
and business operations, an Audit Committee
composed of independent directors has been
established

1.

The Board of Directors has a standing Audit Committee comprised
entirely of independent directors.

The Company's internal regulations specify the Audit

Committee's objectives, including, among others, those set out

in Recommendation 172 of the Code.

At least one member of the Audit Committee, who is an independent
director, has knowledge and expertise in the preparation, analysis,
evaluation and audit of accounting (financial) statements.

The Audit Committee held at least one meeting per quarter during
the reporting period

Complied with Explanation on item 1: the principle is not complied with inasmuch as the Audit Committee

. o of the Board of Directors is not exclusively composed of independent directors.
» Complied with in part

) ) The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors is mostly made up of independent directors.
Not complied with

The elected Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors is an independent
director.

The remit of the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors includes matters reserved for an Audit
Committee by the Corporate Governance Code.

Taking into account:

» the Company's three standing committees (Audit Committee, HR and Remuneration
Committee, and Strategy and Sustainable Development Committee);

» the recommendations and restrictions set out in the Code (on the minimum number
of Committee members (three), on the maximum number of Committees a director may sit
on, on the minimum number of independent directors on an Audit Committee and an HR
and Remuneration Committee, and on the composition of Committees based on directors’
relevant expertise), compliance with the recommendation to have all Committees chaired
by independent directors is impracticable.

Compliance with the recommendation to have the Audit Committee comprised only of
independent directors is impracticable.

The committees seek to guarantee succession in their membership to maintain their combined
competencies and with regard to the role of each director in each committee.

At the same time, the Company's internal regulations, including the Regulations on the Board
of Directors, specify procedures to prevent any conflict of interest and eliminate

the risk of recommendations by the committee of the Board of Directors being affected

by the controlling shareholder or executive bodies.

The Company has no intention to change its approach in the medium term
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2.8.2 For preliminary consideration of matters 1. The Board of Directors has a standing Remuneration Committee Complied with Explanation on items 1-2: the principle is not complied with inasmuch as the HR
related to the development of an effective comprised entirely of independent directors. X L and Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors is not exclusively composed
and transparent remuneration framework, 2. The Remuneration Committee is chaired by an independent director > Complied with in part of independent directors.
a Remuneration Committee composed who is not the Chairman of the Board of Directors. Not complied with ) . . .
of independent directors and chaired 3. The Company's internal regulations specify the Remuneration P Thg HR and Remu.nercmon Committee of the Board of Directors is mostly mgde ue
by an independent director not being Committee’s objectives, including, among others, those set out of independent d}rectorsz The elected Chcnrm.cm of the HR and Remuneration Committee
the Chairman of the Board of Directors has been in Recommendation 180 of the Code, as well as the circumstances of the Board of Directors is a non-executive director.
established (events) on the occurrence of which the Remuneration Committee The remit of the HR and Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors includes matters
shall consider a revision of the Company's remuneration policy reserved for a Nomination Committee and a Remuneration Committee by the Corporate
for members of the Board of Directors, executive bodies and other key Governance Code.
executive officers
Given the Company's three standing committees (Audit Committee, HR and Remuneration
Committee, and Strategy and Sustainable Development Committee), the recommendations
and restrictions set out in the Code (on the minimum number of Committee members (three),
on the maximum number of Committees a director may sit on, on the minimum number of
independent directors on an Audit Committee and an HR and Remuneration Committee, and
on the composition of Committees based on directors' relevant expertise), compliance with the
recommendation to have all Committees chaired by independent directors is impracticable.
At the same time, the Company's internal regulations, including the Regulations on the Board
of Directors, specify procedures to prevent any conflict of interest and eliminate
the risk of recommendations by the committee of the Board of Directors being affected
by the controlling shareholder or executive bodies.
The Company has no intention to change its approach in the medium term
2.8.3 For preliminary consideration of matters related 1. The Board of Directors has a standing Nomination Committee » Complied with
to human resources (succession) planning, (or its objectives specified in Recommendation 186 of the Code ) .
expertise and performance of the Board are implemented by a different committee) with the majority of its Complied with in part
of Directors, a Nomination (Appointment, HR) members being independent directors. Not complied with
Committee mostly composed of independent 2. The Company's internal regulations specify the objectives
directors has been established of the Nomination Committee (or another relevant committee
with combined functionality), including, among others, those set out
in Recommendation 186 of the Code.
3. To align the composition of the Board of Directors with the objectives
and purposes of the Company, in the reporting period, the Nomination
Committee, acting on its own or jointly with other Committees
of the Board of Directors, or an authorised shareholder engagement
division arranged for interaction with a broad range of shareholders
to discuss the selection of candidates for the Company’s Board
of Directors
2.8.4 Given the scope of operations and risk levels, 1. Inthe reporting period, the Company's Board of Directors reviewed » Complied with
the Company’s Board of Directors has ensured the relevance of the structure of its Board of Directors to the scale, ) o
that the composition of its Committees is fully nature, objectives, needs of the Company and its risk profile. Complied with in part
in line with the Company's objectives. Additional Additional committees have been either established or found Not complied with
committees have been either established or unnecessary
found unnecessary (a Strategy Committee,
a Corporate Governance Committee, an Ethics
Committee, a Risk Management Committee,
a Budget Committee, a Health, Safety
and Environment Committee, etc.)
2.8.5 The composition of Committees enables 1. The Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee Complied with Explanation on item 1: the elected Chairman of the HR and Remuneration Committee
comprehensive discussion of matters subject and the Nomination Committee (or another relevant committee . o of the Board of Directors is a non-executive director.
to preliminary consideration with due regard with combined functionality) were chaired by independent directors > Complied with in part ) . ) , )
to varying opinions in the reporting period. Not complied with Resplutlons on the gomp03|t|ons of the Board of erectgrs com'ml.ttees' seek t'o ensure an '
p
2. The Company's internal regulations (policies) contain provisions that optimal bolgnce of independent and non-executive directors in line with their core and specific
prohibit the non-members to attend meetings of Audit Committee, competencies.
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee (or The committees seek to guarantee succession in their membership, inter alia taking into account
another relevant committee with combined functionality), unless they changes in the Board of Directors, to maintain their combined competencies and with regard to
are invited by the chairman of a respective committee the role of each director in each committee
The Company has no intention to change its approach in the medium term
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2.8.6 Committee Chairmen report on their 1. Inthe reporting period, Committee Chairmen regularly reported » Complied with

Committees' performance to the Board
of Directors and its Chairman on a regular basis

to the Board of Directors on their Committees’ performance

Complied with in part

Not complied with

29 The Board of Directors arranges performance assessment of the Board of Directors, its Committees and directors

291 The Board of Directors' performance assessment 1. The Company's internal regulations set out the procedure for carrying Complied with Explanation on item 3: given the increased sanctions pressure on fuel and energy companies, the
is adimed at evaluating the effectiveness out the assessment (self-assessment) of the Board of Directors. . o Board of Directors reviewed the results of its assessment by absentee voting in order to mitigate
of the Board of Directors, its Committees 2. Inthe reporting period, assessment (self-assessment) of the Board > Complied with in part the risk of personal sanctions against members of the Board of Directors
and directors, checking their performance of Directors' performance included performance assessment Not complied with
against the Company’s development needs, of individual directors and the Board of Directors as a whole.
enhancing their activities and identifying areas 3. Results of the assessment (self-assessment) of the Board of Directors
for improvement carried out in the reporting period were reviewed at an in-person

meeting of the Board of Directors
292 Performance assessment of the Board 1. To assess the Board of Directors' performance on an independent » Complied with

of Directors, its Committees and directors

is carried out on a regular basis at least once

a year. To assess the Board of Directors’
performance on an independent basis,

an external organisation (consultant) is engaged
at least once every three years

basis, the Company engaged an external organisation (consultant)
at least once over the last three reporting periods

Complied with in part

Not complied with

3.1 The Company's Corporate Secretary ensures effective day-to-day interaction with shareholders, coordinates
the Company's efforts to protect shareholder rights and interests, and contributes to the Board of Directors’ efficient work

311 The Corporate Secretary has sufficient 1. The Company's website and Annual Report provide biographical Complied with In accordance with Presidential Executive Order No. 903 dated 27 November 2023 information on
knowledge, experience and expertise to perform details of the Corporate Secretary (including the age, education, ) e the Corporate Secretary is not disclosed. Rosneft does not plan to consider any changes in its
their duties, as well as impeccable reputation, qualification and expertise) and positions the Corporate Secretary Complied with in part approach to information disclosure until said Order is invalidated
and enjoys shareholders’ trust held in governing bodies of other legal entities at least over the last » Not complied with

five years
31.2 The Corporate Secretary is sufficiently 1. The Company has adopted and disclosed an internal regulation » Complied with

independent from the Company's executive
bodies and has the powers and resources
required to perform their duties

on Corporate Secretary.

2. The Board of Directors approves the candidate for the position
of Corporate Secretary, terminates the Corporate Secretary's
powers and considers the payment of additional remuneration
to the Corporate Secretary.

3. The Company's internal regulations define the Corporate
Secretary’s right to request and receive the Company's documents
and information from governing bodies, structural subdivisions
and officers of the Company

Complied with in part

Not complied with

4.1 Remuneration paid by the Company is sufficient to attract, motivate and retain employees
with the required competence and expertise. Remuneration is paid to the Company's directors, executive
bodies and other key managers in accordance with the remuneration policy adopted by the Company

411 Remuneration paid by the Company 1. The remuneration of members of the Board of Directors, governing
to directors, executive bodies and other key bodies and other key executive officers of the Company is based
managers is sufficient to ensure their efficient on pay benchmarking against peers
work and enables the Company to attract
and retain competent and qualified specialists.

At the same time, the Company avoids paying
higher-than-required remuneration or creating
unreasonably wide remuneration gaps between
any of the above persons and Company
employees

» Complied with
Complied with in part

Not complied with
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4.2 The Company'’s remuneration policy has 1. Inthe reporting period, the Remuneration Committee reviewed » Complied with
been developed by the Remuneration the remuneration policy (policies) and/or its (their) implementation ) o
Committee and approved by the Board practices, assessed their effectiveness and transparency and, where Complied with in part
of Directors. The Board of Directors, supported necessary, submitted relevant recommendations to the Board Not complied with
by the Remuneration Committee, monitors of Directors to revise this policy (policies)
the introduction and implementation
of the remuneration policy in the Company,
and revises and amends it as necessary

4.3 The Company's remuneration policy provides 1. The Company's remuneration policy (policies) provides (provide) » Complied with
for transparent mechanisms to determine for transparent mechanisms to determine the amount of remuneration ) o
the amount of remuneration payable to its payable to its directors, executive bodies and other key managers, Complied with in part
directors, executive bodies and other key and covers (cover) all types of payments, benefits and privileges Not complied with
managers, and covers all types of payments, provided to them
benefits and privileges provided to them

4.4 The Company develops a policy 1. The Company's remuneration policy (policies) or other internal » Complied with

on reimbursement of expenses (compensations)
specifying reimbursable expenses and service
levels that its directors, executive bodies

and other key managers are entitled to.

This policy may form part of the Company's
remuneration policy

regulations specify procedures to reimburse its directors, executive
bodies and other key managers for the expenses incurred

Complied with in part

Not complied with

4.2 Remuneration system for directors ensures alignment of their financial
interests with the long-term financial interests of shareholders

4.21 The Company pays fixed annual remuneration 1. Inthe reporting period, the Company paid remuneration to members » Complied with
to its directors. The Company does not pay of the Board of Directors in line with the Company's remuneration ) _
remuneration for participation in individual policy. Complied with in part
meetings of the Board of Directors or its 2. Inthe reporting period, the Company did not offer the members of its Not complied with
Committees. Board of Directors any short-term motivation plans and additional

financial incentives based on the Company's performance

The‘Compony does not of‘_fq short—term (performance indicators). The Company did not pay remuneration
motlvqtlon plans and Odd'tlohcl financial for participation in individual meetings of the Board of Directors or its
incentives to the members of its Board Committees
of Directors

4.2.2 Long-term ownership of the Company's 1. If the Company's internal regulation (regulations), namely » Complied with
shares ensures best alignment of directors’ its remuneration policy (policies), allows (allow) distribution ) o
financial interests with the long-term interests of the Company'’s shares to directors, clear rules on share ownership Complied with in part
of shareholders. At the same time, the Company by directors aimed at encouraging their long-term ownership shall Not complied with
does not link the right to sell shares to achieving be introduced and disclosed
certain performance indicators, and directors do
not participate in options plans

4.2.3 The Company does not provide any additional 1. The Company does not provide any additional payments or » Complied with
payments or compensations to directors compensations to directors in the event of early termination ) o
in the event of early termination of office due of office due to a transfer of control over the Company or any other Complied with in part
to a transfer of control over the Company or circumstances Not complied with
any other circumstances

100 Annual Report 2024 www.rosneft.com 101



ROSNEFT

No.

Corporate governance principles

Criteria for compliance with a corporate governance principle

Status of compliance

with a corporate governance

principle

About the Company

Corporate Governance

Appendices

Explanations? on the failure to meet criteria for compliance with a corporate governance principle

4.3 Remuneration system for members of executive bodies and other key managers of the Company
links their remuneration to the Company'’s performance and their personal contribution thereto

4.3 Remuneration paid to members of executive 1. Inthe reporting period, the variable remuneration for members » Complied with
bodies and other key managers of the Company of executive bodies and other key managers of the Company ) o
ensures a reasonable and justified balance was linked to annual performance indicators approved by the Board Complied with in part
between the fixed and variable components, of Directors. Not complied with
with the latter depending on the Company's 2. During the latest assessment of the remuneration system for members
performance and an employee's personal of executive bodies and other key managers of the Company,

(individual) contribution thereto the Board of Directors (the Remuneration Committee) ensured that
the Company maintained an effective balance between the fixed
and variable components of remuneration.

3. The remuneration payable to members of the executive bodies
and other officers of the Company factors in the risks to which
the Company is exposed to prevent excessively risky decision-making
in management

4.3.2 The Company has introduced a long-term 1. If the Company introduces a share-based long-term incentive plan » Complied with
incentive plan for members of its executive for members of its executive bodies and other key officers (share- ) _
bodies and other key managers involving its based financial instruments), the right to sell shares and other financial Complied with in part
shares (options or other derivatives with its instruments may be exercised no earlier than three years after Not complied with
shares as underlying assets) the date on which they were granted. Moreover, the right to sell them

is subject to the achievement by the Company of certain performance
indicators
4.3.3 The amount of severance pay (“golden 1. In the reporting period, the amount of severance pay (“golden » Complied with

parachute”) payable by the Company

to members of its executive bodies or key
managers in the event of early termination

of office, provided that such termination

is initiated by the Company with no misconduct

on the part of the respective employee, does not

exceed twice the size of the fixed component
of their annual remuneration

parachute”) paid by the Company to members of its executive
bodies or key managers in the event of early termination of office,
provided that such termination was initiated by the Company with no
misconduct on the part of the respective employee, did not exceed
twice the size of the fixed component of their annual remuneration

Complied with in part

Not complied with

5.1 The Company has put in place an effective risk management and internal control
system to provide reasonable assurance that it will achieve its goals

511

The Board of Directors has formulated

the principles of and approaches to the risk
management and internal control system
in the Company

1

Risk management and internal control functions of the Company's
governing bodies and divisions are clearly set out in the Company's
internal regulations / relevant policy approved by the Board

of Directors

» Complied with
Complied with in part

Not complied with

51.2 The Company’s executive bodies ensure 1. The Company's executive bodies have ensured the distribution of risk » Complied with
the establishment and maintenance management and internal control duties, powers and responsibilities . .
of an effective risk management and internal among heads of units and divisions accountable to them Complied with in part
control system in the Company Not complied with

513 The Company'’s risk management and internal 1. The Company has approved an anti-corruption policy. » Complied with
control system provides an accurate, fair 2. The Company has established a safe, secure and easily accessible ) _
and clear view of the Company's current channel (hotline) to inform the Board of Directors or its Audit Complied with in part
situation and prospects, and ensures integrity Committee about violations of law, internal procedures or the Code Not complied with
and transparency of the Company's statements, of Corporate Ethics
as well as a reasonable and acceptable level
of risk-taking
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with a corporate governance
principle
514 The Company’s Board of Directors takes 1. In the reporting period, the Board of Directors (the Audit » Complied with

the necessary steps to ensure that

the Company’s Risk Management and Internal
Control System functions effectively and is in line
with the relevant principles and approaches
formulated by the Board of Directors

2.

Committee and/or the Risk Committee (if applicable)) arranged
for an assessment of reliability and effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control system.

In the reporting period, the Board of Directors reviewed the findings
from the assessment of reliability and effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control system to include them

in the Company's annual report

Complied with in part

Not complied with

5.2 The Company conducts internal audits to assess the reliability and effectiveness of its Risk Management,
Internal Control System and corporate governance on a regular and independent basis

5.21 For the internal audit purposes, the Company 1. For the internal audit purposes, the Company has established » Complied with
has established a dedicated unit or engaged a dedicated internal audit unit functionally accountable to the Board ) _
an independent external organisation. of Directors, or engaged an independent external organisation Complied with in part
Functional accountability and administrative with the same accountability principle Not complied with
accountability of the internal audit unit
are separated. The internal audit unit
is functionally accountable to the Board
of Directors
522 The internal audit unit is responsible 1. Inthe reporting period, as part of internal audit, the reliability » Complied with

for assessment of reliability and effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control
system and the corporate governance system
and relies on generally accepted internal audit
standards

and effectiveness of the internal control and risk management system
was assessed.

In the reporting period, as part of the internal audit, the corporate
governance practice (practices) were assessed, including

the communication procedures (including those relating to internal
control and risk management) at all levels of the Company'’s
governance and the stakeholder engagement procedures

Complied with in part

Not complied with

6.1 The Company and its operations are transparent to shareholders, investors and other stakeholders

611 The Company has developed and implemented 1. The Company's Board of Directors has approved its Information Policy » Complied with
an Information Policy ensuring effective developed in accordance with the Code's recommendations. . o
exchange of information between the Company, 2. Inthe reporting period, the Board of Directors (or its Committee) Complied within part
its shareholders, investors and other stakeholders considered the effectiveness of communication between Not complied with
the Company, shareholders, investors and other stakeholders
and the advisability of (need for) a revision of the Company's
Information Policy
6.1.2 The Company discloses information on its 1. The Company discloses information on its corporate governance Complied with In accordance with Presidential Executive Order No. 903 dated 27 November 2023 information on

corporate governance system and practices, system and on the general corporate governance principles it uses,
including detailed information on its compliance including by disclosing such information on the Company's website.
with the principles and recommendations 2. The Company discloses information on the composition of its
of the Code executive bodies and Board of Directors, on the independence
of directors and their membership in the Committees of the Board
of Directors (as defined in the Code).
3. If there is a person controlling the Company, the Company publishes
a memorandum on behalf of such controlling person detailing their
plans as regards corporate governance in the Company

. L members of the Management Board is not disclosed.
» Complied with in part

Rosneft does not plan to consider any changes in its approach to information disclosure until

Not complied with said Order is invalidated
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Explanations? on the failure to meet criteria for compliance with a corporate governance principle

6.2 The Company discloses complete, up-to-date and accurate information on the Company in a timely
manner to ensure that its shareholders and investors are able to make informed decisions

6.2.1 The Company discloses information on a regular
basis and in a consistent and timely manner,
in line with the principles of data accessibility,
accuracy, completeness and comparability

The Company has in place a procedure streamlining the work of all
the Company's structural subdivisions and employees involved

in disclosing information or whose activity may lead to the need

for disclosing information.

If the Company'’s securities are traded in established foreign markets,
disclosures of material information during a reporting year are made
in Russia and in such markets on a concurrent and equal basis.

If foreign shareholders own a substantial number of shares

in the Company, disclosures during the reporting year were made

in Russian and in one of the most widely used foreign languages

» Complied with
Complied with in part

Not complied with

6.2.2 The Company avoids formal approach
to information disclosures and discloses material
information on its operations even if such
disclosures are not required by law

The Company'’s Information Policy defines approaches to non-
mandatory disclosure of information on other events (actions) that
have a material effect on the price and quotes of its securities.

In accordance with Recommendation 290 of the Code, the Company
discloses information on its capital structure in the Annual Report
and on its website.

The Company discloses information on its material controlled legal
entities, including their key business areas, mechanisms for ensuring
their accountability, and the powers of the Company'’s Board

of Directors to define their strategy and assess their performance.

. The Company publishes a non-financial report, i.e. a sustainability

report, environmental report, corporate social responsibility report

or another report providing non-financial information, including that
on the Company's environmental (environment protection and climate
change), social, and governance (ESG) performance, other than

the report of the issuer of issue-grade securities or the annual report
of a joint-stock company

Complied with
» Complied with in part

Not complied with

Explanation on items 2-3: the Company discloses information in line with requirements of the
Bank of Russia but limits the volume of the disclosure to meet the provisions of Resolution of the
Government of the Russian Federation No. 1102 dated 4 July 2022 and Presidential Executive
Order No. 903 dated 27 November 2023.

Rosneft's Board of Directors oversees the development of the strategy and performance
assessment at controlled legal entities using the following mechanisms:

1) control over executive bodies whose remit includes the approval of the Group Subsidiaries’
plans as per Rosneft's Charter;

2) corporate procedures governed by Rosneft's internal regulations, which ensure alignment of all
strategic planning documents of Rosneft and the Group Subsidiaries with Rosneft's strategy
approved by the Board of Directors.

The powers of the Board of Directors to approve Rosneft's Strategy and monitor its
implementation, and the powers of the Chief Executive Officer and the Management Board

to approve the planning documents of the Group Subsidiaries are set forth in Rosneft's Charter.
The powers of the Strategy and Sustainable Development Committee of Rosneft's Board

of Directors to define the Company's policy with respect to the Group Subsidiaries are set forth
in the Regulations on Rosneft Board Committees and disclosed on the corporate website.

Detailed information on internal procedures for approval of strategic documents of the Group
Subsidiaries and control over their implementation by the Board of Directors (its committees)
is not disclosed. The Company has no intention to change this approach in the medium term

6.2.3 As a key communication tool to liaise
with shareholders and other stakeholders,
the Annual Report provides information
needed to assess the Company’s performance
for the year

The Company’s Annual Report provides information on the results

of the external and internal audit assessment by the Audit Committee.
The Company's Annual Report provides information on the Company's
environmental and social policies

» Complied with
Complied with in part

Not complied with

6.3 The Company provides shareholders with equal and unhindered access

to information and documents as per their request

6.3.1 No unreasonable difficulties prevent
the shareholders from exercising their
right to access the Company's documents
and information

The Company's information policy (internal regulations setting

forth the information policy) define(s) the procedure ensuring
unhindered access to the Company's information and documents

at the shareholders' request.

The Company's information policy (internal regulations setting

out the information policy) contain(s) provisions stipulating that

the Company shall take all necessary steps to obtain the information
on its controlled entities from the relevant controlled entities, as may
be requested by the shareholders

» Complied with
Complied with in part

Not complied with

6.3.2 When providing information to shareholders,
the Company maintains a reasonable
balance between the interests of individual
shareholders and those of the Company,
asitisin the Company's best interests
to keep confidential any sensitive commercial
information that may have a material effect
on its competitive position

In the reporting period, the Company did not refuse to provide
shareholders with requested information, or such refusals

were justified.

If and when required by the Company'’s Information Policy,
shareholders are informed of the sensitive nature of the information
provided and undertake to keep it confidential

» Complied with
Complied with in part

Not complied with
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Explanations? on the failure to meet criteria for compliance with a corporate governance principle

7.1 Actions that have or may have a material effect on the Company'’s shareholding structure and financial
position and, consequently, on the shareholders’ position (material corporate actions) are taken on fair
terms ensuring that rights and interests of the shareholders and other stakeholders are respected

711

Material corporate actions include
reorganisation of the Company, acquisition

of 30% or more of the Company'’s voting

shares (takeover), major transactions made

by the Company, increase or reduction

in the Company's charter capital, listing

and delisting of the Company'’s shares, and other
actions that may result in a material change

in the rights of shareholders or be against their
interests. The Company's Charter sets out a list
(criteria) of transactions or other actions deemed
to be material corporate actions and reserved
to the Company’s Board of Directors

1

The Company's Charter sets out a list (criteria) of transactions or
other actions deemed to be material corporate actions. As per

the Company's Charter, decision-making with regard to material
corporate actions is reserved to the Board of Directors. If and when
the law expressly reserves such corporate actions to the General
Shareholders Meeting, the Board of Directors provides shareholders
with relevant recommendations

» Complied with
Complied with in part

Not complied with

71.2 The Board of Directors plays a key role in making 1. The Company has established a procedure for independent directors » Complied with
decisions or recommendations with regard to express their opinions on material corporate actions before their ) _
) h ) Complied with in part
to material corporate actions and relies approval
on the opinion of the Company's independent Not complied with
directors
71.3 When taking material corporate actions 1. Approval of the Company's material transactions is reserved » Complied with

affecting the rights and legitimate interests

of shareholders, the Company ensures equitable
treatment of all of its shareholders, and, where
statutory mechanisms protecting shareholder
rights are insufficient, takes additional steps

to protect the rights and legitimate interests

of the Company's shareholders.

In doing so, the Company is guided not only

by the formal regulatory requirements, but also
by the corporate governance principles specified
in the Code

to Board of Directors as per the Company's Charter, with due
regard to the specifics of the Company's operations and in addition
to regulatory requirements for transaction approvals.

In the reporting period, all material corporate actions were duly
approved prior to their implementation

Complied with in part

Not complied with

7.2 The Company ensures that material corporate actions are taken in a manner enabling shareholders
to receive full information on such actions in due time and influence them, and guarantees
respect and due protection of shareholder rights when such actions are taken

7.21 Information on material corporate actions 1. Inthe reporting period, the Company disclosed information on its » Complied with
is disclosed, with an explanation of the relevant material corporate actions (if any) in a timely and detailed manner, c lied with i "
reasons, conditions and consequences including the relevant reasons, conditions and consequences omplied with in par
for the shareholders Not complied with
7.2.2 Rules and procedures for taking material 1. The Company's internal regulations set out the rules and procedure » Complied with

corporate actions are set forth in the Company's
internal regulations

for engaging an appraiser to determine the value of the property

to be sold or purchased in a major transaction or a related-party
transaction.

The Company's internal regulations set out a procedure for engaging
an appraiser to determine the value of the Company's shares

to be purchased or bought back.

If a member of the Company's Board of Directors, the sole executive
body, a member of the collegial executive body, or a person

who is a controlling person of the Company or a person entitled

to give the Company binding instructions has no formal interest

in the Company's transactions, but has a conflict of interest or other
actual interest with regard to such transactions, such persons shall
abstain from voting on the approval of such transactions as required
by the Company's internal documents

Complied with in part

Not complied with
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LIST OF TRANSACTIONS ENTERED INTO BY ROSNEFT
IN 2024 AND CLASSIFIED AS MAJOR TRANSACTIONS
PURSUANT TO THE FEDERAL LAW ON JOINT-STOCK
COMPANIES

In 2024, Rosneft did not enter into transactions classified as major transactions pursuant to the laws on major transactions.

LIST OF TRANSACTIONS ENTERED INTO BY ROSNEFT
IN 2024 AND CLASSIFIED AS RELATED-PARTY
TRANSACTIONS PURSUANT TO THE FEDERAL LAW
ON JOINT-STOCK COMPANIES

In 2024, Rosneft did not enter into transactions classified as related-party transactions pursuant to the applicable Russian
laws.
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INFORMATION ON CORE INTERNAL REGULATIONS
THAT SERVE AS A BASIS FOR THE PREPARATION

OF THIS ANNUAL REPORT, INCLUDING KEY INTERNAL
DOCUMENTS REGULATING THE INTERNAL AUDIT
FUNCTION AND THE FUNCTIONING OF THE RM&ICS

This annual report has been prepared based
on the following local (internal) regulations of Rosneft:

» Charter;

» Rosneft's Corporate Governance

Code;

» Code of Business and Corporate

Ethics of Rosneft;

» Regulations on the General
Shareholders Meeting;

» Regulations on the Board
of Directors;

» Regulations on Rosneft Board
Committees;

» Regulations on Remunerations
and Compensations Payable
to Members of the Board
of Directors;

» Regulations on the Collective
Executive Body (Management
Board);

www.rosneft.com

Regulations on the Sole Executive

Body (Chief Executive Officer);
Standard on Payments

and Compensations to Top
Managers;

Regulations on the Audit
Commission;

Regulations on Remunerations
and Compensations Payable
to Rosneft’s Audit Commission
Members;

Regulations on the Corporate
Secretary;

Regulations on the Information
Policy;

Regulations on Provision

of Information to Rosneft
Shareholders;

» Regulations on Internal Control
Rules for the Prevention,
Detection and Suppression
of lllegal Use of Insider
Information in Rosneft and/
or Market Manipulation;

» Rosneft's Dividend Policy;

» Company Policy on Combating
Corporate Fraud and Involvement
in Corruption Activities;

» Company Policy on Internal Audit;

» Company Policy on Risk
Management and Internal
Control System;

» Company Policy on Health,
Safety and Environmental
Protection.
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CONTACT INFORMATION

PJSC Rosneft Oil Company

Legal address:

26/1 Sofiyskaya Embankment,
Moscow, 115035, Russia
Mailing address:

26/1 Sofiyskaya Embankment,
Moscow, 115035, Russia

Phone:

+7 (499) 517-88-99

12

Fax:
+7 (499) 517-72-35

Email:
postman@rosneft.ru

Corporate website:

www.rosneft.ru (Russian)
www.rosneft.com (English)
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GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT

ROSNEFT

Date of state registration

and registration number of Ol

Company Rosneft:

» date of state registration
of the Company as a legal entity:
7 December 1995;

» number of state registration
certificate of the Company: 024.537,

» date of entry in the Uniform State
Register of Legal Entities about
a legal entity established prior
to 1 July 2002: 12 August 2002;

» series and number of Certificate
of Entry in the Uniform State Register
of Legal Entities about a legal entity
established prior to 1 July 2002:
series 77 No. 004856711;

» Primary State Registration
Number under which entry about
the establishment of the Company
is made in the Uniform State
Register of Legal Entities:
1027700043502.

www.rosneft.com

Constituent entity of the Russian
Federation in whose territory
the Company is registered: Moscow.

Main types of operations

of the Company: geological
prospecting and geological
exploration work aimed at oil,

gas, coal and other minerals
search; extraction, transportation
and processing of oil, gas, coal

and other minerals and timber;
production of oil products,
petrochemicals and other products,
including electric power, woodworking
products, fast moving consumer
goods and provision of services

to the public; storage and sale
(including sale in the domestic
market and export sale) of oil, gas,
oil products, coal, electric power,
woodworking products, and other
hydrocarbon and other derivatives.

Pursuant to Decree of the Government
of the Russian Federation No. 1226-r
dated 20 August 2009, Rosneft

has been included into the list

of strategic enterprises charged

with implementation of uniform public
policy in those branches of economy
where such entities operate.

Pursuant to Decree of the President
of the Russian Federation No. 688
dated 21 May 2012, Rosneft has been
included into the list of strategic
enterprises and strategic joint-stock
companies.
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